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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of

APL Apollo Building Products Limited

(formerly known as APL Apolio Building Products Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of APL Apollo Building
Products Limited (formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private
Limited) (the "Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report including Annexures
to the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements, and our auditor’s
report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor's report.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information “identified above when it becomes available” and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
Issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

f)

g)

h)
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors s
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - (Refer Note 33 (a) to the financial
statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses — (Refer Note
33 (b) (3) to the financial statements);




Deloitte

Haskins & SellsLLP

Vi.

Page 5 of 13

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company - (Refer Note 33 (c) to the
financial statements);

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer note 41 (g) to the financial
statements),

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of jts knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer note
41 (h) to the financial statements).

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has the feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
systems except that the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain
tables throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit, we did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with, and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention (Refer Note 41(e) to the
financial statements).
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

i

JITENDRA AGARWAL

(Partner)
Place: Noida - (Membership No. 87104)
Date: May 06, 2025 (UDIN: 25087104BMIGUP9047)
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘\Actll) N

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
APL Apollo Building Products Limited (formerly known as APL Apollo Building
Products Private Limited) (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on “the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Aotz =/l JITENDRA AGARWAL

s’%’r (Partner)

Place: Noida u / (Membership No. 87104)
Date: May 06, 2025 - (UDIN: 25087104BMIGUP9047)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (@) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-

progress and right of use assets:

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

()

(d)

(e)
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quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-
in-progress and relevant details of right of use assets.

. As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause 3(i)

of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and right of use assets so to cover all items
once in every two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all
property, plant and equipment were due for verification during the year end and
were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed /
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant
and equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date. Immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been
pledged as security for loans and guarantees are held in the name of the
Company based on the confirmations directly received by us from lenders /
custodians. In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease
and disclosed in the financial statements as right of use asset, as at the balance
sheet date, the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) during the year. The Company does not have any
intangible assets.

According to the information and expianations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

¢
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(i) (a) The inventories (other than inventories in transit) were physically verified during the
year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. Inventories in transit, were verified by
the management based on the subsequent proof of delivery acknowledged by
customers. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points
of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising statement of stock
position filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided
guarantee or securities or loans or advances in nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any parties during
the year, except that the Company has made investments in, and granted loans
during the year to its employees.

(a) Based on the audit procedure carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has provided loans to its employees
amounting to Rs 0.86 crore. The balance outstanding towards loans to its employees
as at balance sheet date amounts to Rs 0.52 crore.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
report procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the terms and conditions of the
grant of loans to its employees during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in case of loans given to its employees,
in our opinion the repayment of principal has been stipulated and the receipts have
been regular. These loans are interest free and hence there is no stipulation with
respect to the payment of interest.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for 90 days
in respect of loans given.

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not
applicable.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and
securities provided, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting
under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost
records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory
dues:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been generally
regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities. We have been
informed that the provisions of Service Tax, Sales tax, duty of Excise and Value
Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of
Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

(b)

(Amount Rupees in Crore)

Name
of
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Forum where
Dispute is
Pending

Period to
which the
Amount
Relates

Amount
(net of
payment)

Amount paid
under protest

The
Income
Tax Act,

1961

Income
Tax

Commissioner
of Income Tax

(Appeal)

2022-23

1.58

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)
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(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanation given to us, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year covering specific processes scoped in the review as per Internal Audit Plan
covering period upto March 31, 2025 for the period under the audit.
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(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount, to Funds specified in Schedule VII
to the Companies Act, 2013 before the date of this report and within a period of
six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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(3

Chartereq :!) \ i
\[p\Reeountanis) &) JITENDRA AGARWAL
\ ®O ‘57 (Partner)
. N LY .
Place: Noida QJ 7 (Membership No. 87104)
Date: May 06, 2025 (UDIN: 25087104BMIGUP9047)

Page 13 of 13



1)
(b)

(<)
(d)
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(b)
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(3)
(a)
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(Rupees in Crores)

i As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Property, plant ang equipment 2 1,330.69 1,289.08
Capital work-in-oregress 3 1561.81 4.66
Right of Use Assets 4 26.13 27.10
Financial assets
(i) Investment s 22.07
() Other financial assets 8 13.71 i4.68
Ner-current tax assets (et} 7 501 330
Other nan current assets 8 . 4B.59 _.__69.89
Total non-current assats 1.608.01 1.408.66
Current assets
Inventeries 9 398 79 342 54
Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 10 14.38 48.62
(i) Cash and cash equivaler:s 11 500 22357
{1} Loans 12 0.52 020
(iv) Other financia, assets 13 27.69 1805
Other current assets 14 11894 _224.51
Total current assets 565.32 857.39
Total Assets 2,173.33 2,266.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity share capital 15(a) 980.00 800.00

Other equity 15(b) 18945 29.99
Total equity 1,165.46 829.49
Liabilities
- n it
Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 357 74 644.62
(ii) Lease liabilities 4 26.40 2596
Provistons 17 3.13 1.99
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 36.02 723
Other non-current liabilities 19 52.08 49.50
Total non-current liabilities 475.38 729.40
urrent haoilities
Financial liabilties
(i) Borrowings 20 149.45 150.21
(i) Lease liabiiities 4 1.86 1.86
(1ii) Trade payables 21
- total outstanding dues of micro erterprises and small enterprises 261 0.66
- total outstanding dues of zreditors other than micro enteranses and smal 309.22 506.42
enterprises
(iv) Other financial 'iabilities 22 16.52 34.09
Other current iiabilities 23 48.67 13.83
Provisians 24 _ __D.1e 0.05
Tatal current liabilitias 32545 3740
Total equity and liabilities 2,173.33 2,266.05
The accompanying notes form an integrai part of tnese financral statements 1-41

This s the balance sheet referred t¢ n our repcrs of even date

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registraticn No 117366W/W-120018

"JITENDRA AGARWAL

Partner

Membership No. 87104

Place : Noiga
Date : May 6, 2025

Apaesl

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ARL AP2LLO BYILDIMNG PRODUCTS LIMITED

\ ;_\.

RAHUL GUPTA
Managing Director
DIN : 07151792

‘\ ~ " .
M%.«\ " '
vIPUL JAIN

Compary Secratary

#.U;’-,{ g

VINAY (';[Lrn'm
Birrecior
DIN : 00005149

._\. £
AMRESH MISHRA

—-*..Tr:‘-:’--\r‘anc.a: Officer

ICS! Membership No a‘-..'-‘Uf.’-l‘fi‘
L om
Place : Naida {2/
Date : May 6, 2025 | S
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025 )

Particulars

I Revenue from operatons
II Other :ncome

III Total income (I +1I)

IV Expenses
{2) Cost of materais cons.med
{b) Purchase of stcck-n-trade (traded gocds;
(c) Changes 'n inventones of finished goods, work-in-
progress, rejection and scrap
{cd) Employee oenefits expense
(e) Finance costs
{f) Depreciation expense
{g) Other expenses
Total expenses

V  Profit before tax (III - IV)
vl Tax expense:
(a) Deferred tax
Total tax expense
VII Profit for the year (V-VI)

VIII Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified te profit or loss

{a) Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation

(b) Income tax relating to (2) above

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)

X Earnings per equity share of Rupees 10 each
(a) Basic {in Rupees)
{b) Diluted {In Rupees}

The accompanyling notes form an integral part of these financial statements
This is tne statement of profit and loss refer-ec to in our report of even date

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartereg Accountants
Firmi 5 Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

n N"\!/
W!
JTTENDRA AGARWAL T

Partner
Membersnic No. 87104

Place : Noida
Date : May 6, 2025

(Rupees in Crores)

Nates Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

25 4,699.96 3,189.24
26 6 67 362
- — 4,706.63 3,192.86
27 3.57331 2,548.65
341.62 210 60

28 5.95 (43.62)
29 8157 56.39
30 58 21 71.53
31 62 38 54.06
32 413 27 362 82
4,536.31 3.160.44
170.32 32.42

18 2875 6.21
28.75 6.21
141.57 26.21

0.26 (0.19)

(0.04) 0.05

0.22 {0.14)

14179 26.07

35 1.74 0.43
35 174 043

141

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
APL ARPOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

3
ool
\
3
RAPUL GUPIA
Managing Cirector
DIN : 07151792

VIPUL JAIN
Company Secretary

|
(>
Yy
Ll |
VINAY GUP
Director
DIN . CC205149

<.

v~
b%e

AMRESH MISHRA

Chief Financial Officer

ICSI Membership Nc. : A20971

Place : Noica
Date : May 6, 2025
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apailo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

“Year ended
March 31, 2025

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit before tax 170,32 3242
Adiustments far
Interest income ¢n fixed depasizs (2.32) {0.5C)
(Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net} (0.08) (311
Export obligation deferred income amarhisation (2.63) 217
Provision for slow movina inventorv of spares & consumabies 9.65
Finance Cost 58.21 753
Sahre based pavment 322
Depreciauon and amort:sation expense 52,38 54 26
Operating profit before working capital changes - 290.75 154.83
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease 'n sperating assets:
Inventanes 156 90) (28 46)
Trade receivanles 3424 (37.51)
Non Current financiai assets 8.7G {7.33)
Non - Current assets
Current firancial assets
Current ioans & Other financial assets (13.0]) (17 87}
Otner currenc assets 1C5 47 753 553
Adjustments for :ncrease / {decrease; n operating Laorities
Tracde pavabies 1195.24) 276 44
Other current liabrlic.es 34.84 597
Other non current labinties 249 14 50
Other financiat nabilities 16 66
Pravision {current & non-current) 1.42 0.58
Cash generated from operations 204 74 314.25
Net income tax paid {net cf refund) - (1,720 (2 44}
Net cash fow from operating activities (A) 203.03 311.81
B. Cash flaw from investing activities
Capital expenditure on praperty, plant and equipment, including capitai advarces (245.53) (313.48)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10.65 18.91
Investment in fixed ceposits (net) 4.89
Investment in other companies (22.07)
Proceeds / (investment; in fixed deposits (net) (0.31)
Interest receved on fixed deposits = 0.89 e 0.52
Net cash flow (used) in investing activities (B) (256.37) (289.16)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds of non-current borrowings 2:.79
Proceeds of current oorrowings 49 38
Repayment of non-current borrowings {2B86.89)
Repayment from current barrowings (0 .76)
Finance Cost {73.50) (71.53;
Payment an account of lease liabilities {1.86) (1.86)
Proceed from issue of equity snare capital ncuialing premium 198.18 200.00
Net cash flow (used in) / from financing activities (C) (165.23) 197.79
Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (218.57) 220.44
Cash and casn equivalents at the beginning of the year 22337 3.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5.00 223.57
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Net Cash and cash equivaients {as defined :n Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements) :nc'vded 5.00 223.57
mn note 11
1-a1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
This is the statement of cash flows referrec to in our repart of even aate

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firmys Registration No. 117366W/W-120018
L7

JITENDRA AGARWAL
lartner
Membership No. 87134

Place : Noida
Dare : May f, 2025

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
ATL APDLLO BUILOING PRODUCTS L IMITED

1.
VINAY TA
Cirecior

CIN © 00005149
.

Managing Directar
BIN : 07151752
v . o
\, \,f‘d
\/‘; .
" e
AMRESH MISHRA
Chief inanciai Officer

V’IPU‘\. JAIN
ipany Secretscy
81 Yemuership Ne

Place : Noida
Date : May 6, 2025



APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known a

5 APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200D0L2019PLC358966

a) Equity share capitat

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY EOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Rupees in Crores)

Particutars Total
Opening balance as at April 1, 2024 600.00
Changes during the year ended Marcn, 2024 o 200.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 800.00
Changes during the year enagea March, 2025 180.00
Balance as at March 31, 2025 — — 980.00
b) Other equity
| Particulars =l P B T T
: curities
Retained Earnings | it Total |
premium |
Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 3.42 = 3.42
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2024 2621 . 26.21
Other zocmprenensive {lass) for tne year, net of tax e —: (0.14) — (0.14)
Total comprehensive income for the year 26.07 - 26.07
Balance as at March 31, 2024 29.49 - 29.49
profit for the year ended March 31, 2025 141.57 141,57
Other comprehensive income for tne year, net of tax 0.22 0.22
Total comprehensive income for the year 141.79 = 141.79
Allacations/Appropriations :
Secumties premium on issue of shares 18.18 18.18
Balance as at March 31, 2025 iias 18,18 — 189.46 _

The accompanying notes form an integrai part of these financial statements
This is the statemenrt of changes in equity referred to .0 ur report cf even date

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registratign No. 117366W/W-100018

- el

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner
Membership No. 87104

Place : Noida
Date : May 6, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
AP A20LL0 BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

e
N

2

RAIIUL SUFTA
Managing Director
DIN 37151792

\
-
VIPUL JAIN

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No

A20971 o

Place : Noida
Date : May 6, 2025
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLCI58966
motes to the financial statements fac the vear ended March 3 1,2025 —

1(i)

1(ii)

(b)

()

Company background

APL Apolin Jukting Produtts L nifiza 10 Delhi, India. The Campany iz 4 wholly owned subsidiary of

“olour castec coils, embossed sneats,
npany has been convered from Private

\Arararated an Decsimbn: 19, 2019, havini s renisierad
APL Apollo Tubes Limitec (the roiding Company) and s engaged in the business sf producien of ERW steel tabss.
Galvalume coils and others. The company has ane manufactunng unit at Raipur, {inhatisgarh. Subsequent to year end.
Limited Company o Public Limited Company w.e.f. April 4, 2025

The Anancial statements for the year ended March 31, 20625 were approved by the Boara of Directars and autnorised foe 'ssue on May 06, 2025

Material Accounting Policies
The matenal accounting pohcies apphed oy the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are iistad oelow Such a3
-ansistently to 3ll the periads presented n thase financial statements

ccounting policies have been apohed

statement of compliance

The financial staiemeris are grepared ans presented in aC
Standards) Rufes 2015, as amendec from IiTe o tme as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 .
2013 {'the Act™)

zordance with Indian Accourting Standards (Ird AS) rotified urder the Companies {Irdian Accourtng
the retevan: provision of the Companies AZT

Basis of Preparation
The financ.al statemants nave been grepared cn accrual basis unde- the mistorncal cost Dasis axcept for certain financial (NStruments wiich are measured 3L fa.c
value 3t the =aa of =ach reparting per:od as axplamed « the accourting policies deiow. risloncal Cost 18 generaliy tased on e fair vaiue of the consiceratien

g ven

particicants a3t the
Cai wakial wl e ansel
Il ACCTunt ANM
errrungd o0 Suth 1

liby in 20 3 Fly rarENcan oe
vaiuatpn fecnimaue . [ ot

a5 th Akl a0 asEt 90 cend 18
v GEECrVanie or e4tmiied ufing annt
o of fho asssl 20 hal ity of markel paruop % WOLHG 1aKke tnose Crararten
H nm eeasytemnent and/or 2 sIlosane purpases thase I ai statoments s o
hasts, except far sharg Dasec payment ransaciions ihat are vatnin ihe scape St ind A% UL 108 2asing W dnsaLiteia e TR ECCER S5
measurements that Have some similarit as to fair value but are not fair value, such as net reaizable value in irg AS 2 orvalue incsein ine AS 36.

valL@ 5 the prce el wou'd

5 ire

2, or 3 based on the degree 1c #hich the 'nputs to the far value

n adaition, for financiai reporting purposes. fair value measurements are categorised Into Level p
hich are described as faiiows:

measurements 3re observable and the significance of the Inputs to the fair value measurement in its entrety, w

Level 1 inputs are quated grices (unadjustea) in aclive markets for \dentical assets or liapiliues that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Cevel 2 \nputs are (Nputs, ather than gquoted prices \ncluded within Level 1, tnat are observable for the asset or iiability, either directly ar indirectly; and
Leve! 3 mputs are unobservadle npuls fgr tne 3sser or hapihty.

Use of astimates and critical ting judg: ts

tn preparation of tne financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and a
not reamly apparant fram other Sources. The estmates and the associated assumplions are pase:
be relevant. Actuai results may differ from these estimates.

ssumptions about the carrying values of assets and liatilities that are
d or historical experience and other fac-ors that are considered o

The estmates anG the snderlying assumptions are reyiewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed 0 the period .n which the

ssumate is revised ang future periods affected

The follgwing are the cnitical judgements, apart from those ipvolving estimations that the directors nave made n the process of appiyinig rhe Company's accourting
solicies and that nave the most significant affect on the amounts ~ecognised in the standalone financial statements

peferred income tay assets and lizhilities & Income Taxes
Sigmificant management judgment is raquired 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets tnat can be recagrised, pased upon

future taxable orofits.

the likely timing and the level o

The amount of total aeferrec rax assers Jould change f ectimates of projectea fLiure taxable income or \f tax reguiat:ons unJergo a cnange

el

ble that Juvsitible Ty pa realized. ~ g
N certain ¢aL2s. BUSINESS lens, MATHCHT T3 xgement’s exgclalicns UG
sunt or defesred Lax Laoilities ar the waluation of Jeinirss tax

ISTeLL Are fHIDLMZED 'y the ext
| amnes cosnd on O tax
—apraer 3 aroauary of the related Changes in the<e @shimates may alfect the am
agsets and thereDy the tax Znarge n the Statemenl of Profit ar .oss

Provision for tax ‘iabilties require judgements on the \rrerpretation of ax \egistation, developments In case 13w and the gotentiai outcomes of tax audits and

appeals which may be subject o significant yncertainty
Therefare, the actual results may vary “rom expectations resuiting 1n adjustments to Provisions, the vaiuation of geferred tax assets, cash rax settlements anc
nerefare the max charge :n the Statement of Profit or Lass

isefuyl lives of @rocorty, piant and ocwipmant ('DOE"Y

The Company ~eviews the estimated Jsafy! lves and “esidual value of OPE at the end of gacr “=pomng penod. The
usage, Techn sevelopments ang sroducs life-gycle, could sigmificantiy impact the comic useful iy
Consequently e gepraciation chasge tould be revised 3ngd thereby could nave an :mgact ob the profit of the future vears

< such as changes :n tne expected tevel of
. ana the res,gual values of these assels.

Defined benefit plans
Tne oo of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the gefined benefil gbhgation (DBO") are based on actuanal valualisn using the rojected urit cradit

mathod, An actuaral véluation involvas maxing vanous Assumphiens that may aifer from actual deveigpments in ime future. Tnese mciude the determmatan of
in the valuatien and its long-tesm natuse, a gefined deneht

:ne discount ate, future salary increases anc mortality rates. Sue o the complexilies invalved
soligation 1s mgnty sensitive to changes n these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewsd at gach reparung Jate.

Fair v n v n Tal i m
Trne fair vaiue of financial nstruments, that are nat sraded in an active markas, s dererrmined Dy using valuation rechriques This involves significant judgements in
slance Skest date and :n identifying the most

selection of a method 'm Making assumptions that are mainly sased an market conditions existing at the 3z
{

appropnate estimate of fair vaiue when a wide range of “air vaiue measurements are possbie.

(3
\: :c,;\_//;“‘/
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»
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Chartered

Accountani




(d)

(e)

(asd

(a)

(h)

APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apoilo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL20 19PLCI5B966
__ Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 o o

Operating cycle

335ed on the nature of products / activities of the Campany and the normal ume betwean acquisition of assets and their realisation cash or cash equivaients, the
Company Nas determined its operaung ¢vile as 12 mentns for the ourpose of classificat.cn of its assets and nabihties as current ard rar-current

Foreign currency transiation
Functional and presentation currency

e financidl statements are presented :n indian rubee (INR}, whcnos furchioral ard praseniatior cur-ency

Transactions and balances
< of she 1"anNsSachicns. Zors gn exchange 33ins and
5 denamvnated A fore gn currencies at year end

sing the exanaras rates 3 e OF

.aton of = ~ assets ang lanl

o tha funchioral CurTene

Saraigp Turr

¢ Iransactions 304 transiated

osses “esultng from thie sattiemant of ransactions ang from iré
axchange t3tes are generally sacogmised n Statament of srofit ang Loss

Foraign exchange differences rggarded as an adjusiment e sprrowing 1osts are presenrtac o INe Sta
eign gxchanga §ains ang lgsges are presented in 1ne Sratement of Arafit and Loss an 3 nat 9335 within JIner gains/{lossas)

temgrr of Profit and Loss. within France costs. Al other

Revenue recognition
The -evenue s "BL3g 1sed gnce tha 2ntily sarisFed that gerfarmance ab'gatior & conz-oi are transferred o ine custamers.

Sale of goods

T Company 2 wie from sale of goods ane & upon transi Ty
the cansderanan pany axpects jo futavi in wacktge for tnas LGS, To recoyid
iantify the contract woth a customer (2) sdentify the aerinrmance aphgatisns 0 the contrac
g the performarcs cofigations in the =aniract, and 3} recogmize reyanues wher 2 serformance oohgaticn /5 satisfled

izl of rorwsed §00A5 10 s_sramers [ an pmounat that r2fiecs
Campdny apples e ‘miowing Ave aparaaen {10
e fransachan price. (4) allocate the ts3nsaniion pree

any chaage In scope Jr price 1s cansdered as 3 contract mad ficaticn. The Cagmpary 3<counts for madif-cations o existing contracts Dy assessing wretner the

services added are distnct and whether the pricing 1s at the standalone selling price

s wEs to customars 35 reductien of revenue on 8 systematic and
(g expectad valug method or the sirgle most

~ha Company accounts for varadie cansaerations likg, velume ciscaunts, rebates and TANG A%
ratonal gasis aver the penod of tna zanrract The Sompany estimates an armount of sucn variable congideraban Js

wkely amaunt i a range of aossible consideration depending an which method geqer gred cts the aripunt of consigeration to whicn wE May DE snutied.
Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returns, goods and services tax and agplicable aiscounts and aliowances.

1n contracts wnere the Company acts 33 an agent, the revenug s racorded 3t rhe net amrount that the Company rerains for \ts services

Interest income
{nterest incame is accrued on 2 ume proportion oasts, by reference to the principie cutstanding and the affecrive interest rate applicable

Commission income
Cammission incame 1s recognised when the servies ara rendered

Government grants

Zpverament grants are not recogrised until rhere s reasonabie assurance chat the Growe will -omply with the canditiens attaching to them and that rhe grants will

e recewed

he Group fecoomies as AXDeTEES na relatoe custs it whieh
the gract are ¢ 2 te sampensate ramcr ahlmation are —ot e Mt grante whnse anmary fan sior s that thie Greup snould
urchBSS, ~SNELTUCE OF DIREIWISE ACquIFR NOA-AULITEN assets {iciuding propett _mort} are (ucoyrised as dererred INCHME o e corgoidated
=alanca snaet and rranisferrad 1o orofit 9F (055 N3 systamatic ang “aucnal Dasis aver he usaful ives af the refatec assets.

Goverment granis 512 rocognised 0 2 fip ar ‘g on 3 SySLer

rounen 9

Goverament 3rants rhat are reczjvatie as comoensztion for expenses or ‘osses already ncurred Jr for tne Jurpose of qwvirg mmrediate financia supoport to the

Group with ng future related costs are recagnised in arofiz or ©s5 12 she penod 'n which They become recewable

The cenefit of a government lpan at a selow-market rate of interest is rreated as 3 goverr\ment Jranz, measurad as ine diference berween orocsecs recaived and

she farr vawe of the ioan based an prevaling market interest rates.

Income tax
The :rcome tax 2xpense or credit for the perioc s the X payable on the currert oerod
3djusted Dy changes \n Jeferred tax assets anc nabitities atembutable te remporary differences and to unused tax losses.

‘5 raxable income based on the apphicapie income tax rate for each vear

The -urrenr ncome tax charge s calculated on the Dasis of the fax laws enacted or substanuvely enacted at the end of the reporung periog Management
penodicaliy avaluates positions [aken in ax returns with respect o situations n wnich appiicatle @x regulation 15 subject to \nterpretation. it establishes
grovisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected [0 De paid to the tax autharities.

Deferred ncome iax 15 provided 1= fslr, using the habiity method, of temporary differances ansing petwesan the tax bases of assets and habilltles and their
carrying arnaunts in the fnancial staterments. Deferred :ncome tax s determuned using fax rates (and laws) that have been enacted of substantially enacted by e
end of the reporting periad 2nd arz expected to apply when the related deferr2g incame tax asset :s realised or the defermd income 2% tiability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences ang unused tax '0sS5es anly :fit's orsbable that future raxable 3mounts will De avallabie
to utilise those temporary differences and |0S5€S.

gnt ta offset currart rax assers and iiabilities and when rhe deferred tax balances

Ceferred Tax assers ang liaphh.es are offset when “here 'S 3 sgaily enfgrceabe n
-ight o offset ang .ntencs erther 1o

relale o the same axaton authority Cufrent tax assels 3ng tax hiadilities are offset where tne entity nas 2 regatiy anforceable
settle gn 3 ner Hasis, ar to -eanse the asset and sertle the Naoiity simultaneously
ag ro the esxten: toat ¥ 'S 10 onger probable that sufficiert

The carrying value of deferred tax assets s reviewed 3t the end aof each reporng © ~od and recu
raxable 7085 L =a avalkanie o allow 3! or part of the asset t© De recgvered
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Notes to the financial statements for the year endad March 31,2025

tent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income In

I

S

ent and deferred tax :s recognised in Statement of Profit and LOSS, except to the ex
case, the tax s aiso recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

wrrad tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid where applicable in accergance with the
sfits in the farm of av allability of set off against future ncome tax liability. MAT is racognised as deferres
sured rehiably and it 15 grobable that the future eccnomic senefit asscoated with the 2sset will be reahsed.

tax laws n [ndia, which is likely to give future economic
d tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be

ses

a lessee
zantract contains a lease; A :nzeption aof a
r¢ contrsl the use of ar dennfac asset for 2 oenct of mmz m sxchange for

the Company 3ssesses afiether: (1) (e CoNtract rvdwves rhe
1 through the penod of tna 'pase ana (i) the

hroug

Campany’s lease asset classes prmanty consist af «eases for \and 2nd buildings. The Campany Js5855€5 whather 3

¢, a lsase If the contract conveys whe right
g1 tre useof an gentified assel,
gf the ecanomic =enefits from use of the asse

tr3ct. A contract .5 Of tOrtam
sgeratior TC assess wnether a santract conveys tne fAgNio o8
of an dentifiec asset [t «ne Company Das supstantatly all
npany a5 tne right 1o Jre g use of the assel.

¢ of tne lease, the Company recogrizes 2 sight-of ws asset ("rQU") ard 3 ~orrespanding iease haob Aty for an tease arrargarents
2355 aith 4 erm af swiles MON sho LarT leases) and =4 Jalug \cases. ©g- rnes2 STOMtterm and ow sa.Le £2ses, e

-ne date of commensem
r i85 (303
ns@ 6N 3 S073:ghi- (1N DASIS Jver the tesm of the |ease

ch .z .S 3 ‘essne, exfeli L
npany recognizes the oask Jaymenis 35 ar aperaung exge

{ain iease arrangements ncluges 17e opuons [0 extena or Lermynate (e (e3se pefors the and of the legss t&rm. 20U 3ssets 3ng lease [lilitias incu

-ong whar It s reasonagly tertan mnat tray will be exertised The nght of-use assats are imitially recogmzed at cast, wn er carmprises the mitial amount of the

se ligpiity adjusted for any ‘case paymants mage at ar priar to the commencament date of the tease plus any \niral Girect cOsts less.any |ease ncenmves. They

» subsequerily measyred 3T To57 'ass sccumulated Jegresition anc rpairment losses

saze or a sirmght-lire basis over e snorier ol e |pase term and Jsaful life of che unza*ying 3sset
changes o Sircumstances nd.caTe thal theif CArTYINg amaunts may not be ~acoverabie. For

seil ang the valua-n-use) s Jerermined on &° ndivicual

iht-of-use assals Are gapreciated from e © mmencement
jnt of Jse assels are evaluated for recaverabiity whenaver wERLS OF
> purpose of impairment 1@sLnG, tne recoveragie amount (1.2 the nighes af the fair value less cost 12
ser basis uniass the asset gges not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from ather assels

The lease payments are discgunted using ine interest
¢ dqormcie af these ieases. L_e2age ‘abihnes 3are

ent «f whether .t will sxercise an ext@nsion or a

3sr at iha prasant vaike of the future lgase payments.
«inaole, using tna ur:cremeft:al Dorrowing rates 0 tne country 2
reigted right of use assat \f the Company changes its 255€55M

e lease lasility is imitially measurad al amars
te imolict 16 the iease ar F rot readlly dete
measurad with a corresponding adjustment 12 the
rminaticn aption.

sase lability and RCU asset have been separately presented

\n the Salance Sheet and lease payments have neen classified as financing cash flows.

mpairment af assets

¢ aact saiance sheet gdate. the Company revigws the carmying values of L8 propetty, olant and equipment and intangible assals 10 determine whether there 1s any

sdication that the carrying value of those ass2ts may gt pe recgverzble thraugh santinuing use. If any such ingication axists, he recaveraole amourt 2 the asset
reviewed N order o deterrming the extent of impait™m gss {F any). Where the assels does not genier 1hat are ndesendent from atrer 353215, he

ata cash flows i
ompany astimates the ~220 sarable amount of he <ash generaung Lrut 1o wPiEh The assat delongs.

g valug |n u58, ‘he sgtmated future £as” faws are discounted to e
ana the risks speoific ©o -he 2sset for woich the
fit and loss as and when the carrying wvajue of an

‘ecovarable amount s the mighest 5 #3ir value iess costs o sell and value in Lse. In assessn
-ufrent market assessments aof the nme value of monay

resent salue using 4 pre-tax diszouns sate that "efledis tu

stirmates of future cash flows nave not nesn adjusted. AT mparrmant lass § recognised m the statement of pro
.sser exceeds its recovarable amaunt.
g unit) is increased to the revised estmate af its recoverabte

(or casn generatin
d ro moasment 'as5 been ~ecogr:sed for 1ne

¥here an impaimment 'o5s subseguently réverses, the carrywng vaiue of tne asset
at would have beer ceterrminec ha

ymount so that the ncraased farming value does rot exceed N2 carrying velue @
;sset (or casn genarating Lnit) in anar years

cash and cash equivalents and Cash Flow Statement

a, other snors-term, mgay NG \nyestments wit?

asn ang casn equivalents includes casn on nan
rc an nsignificant rick of changes 'n value,

ble =5 <nows amsunts of cash and wnich are subject
~ant abilities n the Balance Sheet.

=or tne purpose of gresentation in e Statement of Tas"T Tlows, o
arigingl maturties af tnres months or less that are “22 iy zonverti
1nd pank overdrafts 3ank qusrdrafts are shown within Sar-owings nood

mature, 3ny deferrals or

= zax is adjusted for the offects of transacticns af a nan-cash
gated vased on the

Cash flows are reported using the :nc'rect method, wnerehy net orofit befer
ting ana financing activities of tre Company are segre

accruals of past of future Cash receipts or payments. Tne casn Aows from oparating, (nvesl
avallapte :nformanon.

Short term 20rrowings, regayments and advances naving Maturity AF ~hree manths ar less, are shown 3s net in cash flow staterment.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress, stores, traded and finished goods
{nventores are valued ar the ‘owear of zost (First 0 Trst Sut FiFD nams) and the net reaiisabie vaiue after providing for ahbsolescence and other i0Sses. where
considerad Necessary Cost inciudes cost of gurcnasa, 2il 2narges 0 Brnging the goods to the point of sale. \ncluding ndirect layies. transit insgrance and ~ecewving

charges. Finishied gaods \nciude anproprate proporien af sverneads and, whers apphcabie.

Cast of inventor:es also nclude all other costs :ncurred in brnging the mventones o their present location and candiuon.

Rejection and scrap

Relect:on and scrap are saiLed at net realisable value
Net realisable value is the eshmated selling price .0 the crdinary course of business tess the estimated costs of compietion and the esumated COStS necessary <]

make the Sa:&.
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rty, plant and equipment and capital wiork-in-progress
A+ 3¢ statec at Mstorcal cos iess caprecanar ang impairment

car cost. Al other items of grogerty. plant and 2oupme

yig ‘and & carned at Mwstan
A af the e’

ical cost includes axperditura thatis 4iragtly attributatie 1o thie acauls
< inclusive af inward fraight, dutes a0 taxes and ncidental exaenses raiated (o ACQUISLEN 9 construcuiod All upgradasion ¢ urmancuments are charged ot
t gment 1% ﬁt'&;:ﬁ;"-:’,ed 4oor disppsal of when

—peTy. aant and etul@
v saprament 2f an tem af propeny

o Ficant 3SALIANE senafits. An o7 2
ar iS5 ANSING 67 sma g15p0%3t 2
sgrised i the stazement of

La-yp Exgonc tdre uniess cnay rng SEHET 5§
5 are sxpeciee 0 a7se from the continued use af assel. AnY gan
erapga Betwaen the cales procesds aF tna gar—ying amount of the asser and s et

5 genomIs O
and egupment 15 detarmined 35 e &

255

yirg amount oF recogrised 25 2 saparate assél. 25 aporognate, 3Ny when it 15 grosabie chal Future 2CONGMIC
-3n bz measursd F2lATY The sarmying amount At apy foTipOnent ac
rafit or L0SS JLING mp reQOTTING DET od: "

ntac

ded in the 3SSBLS T3
ram il fow t0 R rarpany ard The o5 of

cad. All ather rena.rg and =an

gguent 0515 are ‘0l
e assor ated wit
5 3 separate 3552015
noynav are NEUTTEC

cnamed 10 Sratement 2f 7

Apracognisec when repld
anesy SOAares whch san 92 yseo oty in cannestion withan iem al fwed assel and whase LEe 15 aypecied 2 a rreguiadn are :4::||a|nse= ang :EDPL'l:l.l:ed Hver

gseful life af e grincipal item af e spigvant assels.

Camgany hasa palicy 2 canaifs (~surange spares having alue mars than ar 29ual =5 Rupess 0 0L C7a™=

-osts ara -~ciugea in tne 35sa1s
ne

: sair varye at the sequisman dat2 = jpsequent
asspoiated with rna e il flow 10

gerty, olant 3nd aguipment deguirse 7 susiness compination e recognisen A

~ing value 37 ragagnises 245 3 sepacate 2sSels 85 aporoprate omy whed ¢ 15 pussioie N3t future sconomit Sen
mpany

pital work-in-progress

jects wnger which samgible fixed 355L8 478 not
noutabie interest

rpreciation methods, estimated usefut lives and residuai value

jpreciatan on rargible progerty. slant ang quipment has heen providec on the siraigh-ing method as per tneé jspful e prascnned i Schecule 11t the
impames Al 2013 axcept 7 tNe case of tne certain categories of assets, 0 whose case the fife of the assefts Nas Sean assessed &3 Jngar pasec on rezhmeal
wice, taking INTC sccount the nature =f she asger, he astimated Usage of tne assel, he pperating =apgitions of the asgat, oast mstay of rapiacement, anticipated

shnoiogicad! changés, manufacture’s sarranuas and maintenance suoport, 2i<

vt ready for ther ntanded Jse ire carned at zast. corrgnsng giract zost. spigted TC gantal exoenses and

~e asumated useful Iife of varous araperty. olant and equipment s s unaes -

1) Bulldings- 10 to 60 years

7)) Rgacs- 1Q years

) Plant and machinery used 0 manufactunrg of pipe and coils 10-20 y=ars
d) Other plant and machinery- 2 to 10 vears

) Venicles- 5 years

f) Furniture and fixtures- 10 vears

g) Office equipment- 2-5 years

) Computer- 3 vears

The resigual values, useful wves and nethod of deprecianion of Property. plant & equipment S reviewed at the end of eacn financiai vear and adjusied

praspectivety |f appropr ate
if 3 lease cransfers ownersmp f he

e useful nfe of rhe underiy\ng asset
deprecﬂated gver

2 option, the reiated 1gnt of use 3sses

ught of use assets are depreciated Iver the shorter period of the ease term ang th
underiving asset or the cost af ngnt of use asset reflects tnat the Group expecis 0 exarcise 8 purchas
the usetul hfe of the underying asset

5 are axpected to anse “~om the continued use of the

whnen no future ecanomic benefit:
posal proceeds ang tne carry'ng amount

£ s derecogmsed spon disposal or
petween the net s

An tem of property. plant and eguiomean
n 3ssec1s determined 2s the difference

asset. The gain or 1055 arsing on the Aispasal or reurement of 3
of the asset and 's recognised n profit or '0SS.

garnings per share
*ne ne: Drofit / tloss} after zax by the wengnied gverage number of sauity shares sutszanding dunng ne year
1o axpense of incame

ing the net profit ¢ t1085) after 1ax a5 adjust=d for Gquidenc, nterest 204 atnar LNarges
o Sagc gamngs 38f snare ang NE weignted

refating to the dilutive potentia: aguity shares, by the weighted average Qumoer of equity snares consdered for denwving

3yverage numoer of equity shares which ~auid nave been \ssued on the conversion of ail gilutive setential 2guty srares. Sorentidl aguity snares are deemed 10 5€
Jiutive anly .f thetr -gnversior 1o eadity shares would decrease rne net profit per share from conunuIng rainany gperalions parantizs diutive pauity shares are
deemea to D€ converted as at e peginning of the percd, uniess tney have peen issued 3t a ater cate Shutive potEntid: aguity shares are getermnes

‘noepenuer‘tlv for each oenod oresented

Basic 2aMiNgs per snare s computed v Aicing
Dyluted 2armngs per snaTe 5 computed 3v 3V 3

Provisions
=pnatructive sbligation 25 2 ~esuit of past events, 't 15 orobabie thar an sutflow of resources
sed for future aperatling 1055€S

e recogmsed when «he Company has 2 present 'egal 31
piigation at the ead of Me

n e reliadly agrirmated. Provisions are ot ~acogni
diture required 'O settie ME present 2

Srgvisions ar
il pe recuired 38 sertle the soligaton and the amount ca
SrovisiOns are measurac at e aresant value of management's 2est asymate of the exgen

reporung oenoa.

Contingent tiabllities

nts whose existence will he confirmed DYy the oeoureence or non-accurrence of ane or more
r s nct -acognised necause 't 1§ "Gt srocable that an outflow of resaurces
there S & Lapiliy 1At cannot 22 recogrized pecause 't

“he Ananc:dl sratements.

A cantingent hatiity s @ possiie obhigation that anses from past eve
uncertain futurs svents beyond ne control of the Company or 3 present obligauion tha
il pe reguired settie rhe apiigaton 4 conungent \iabilicy also anses 0 axtremely raie cases wnere
cannot J€ measurad renably Tne Company Aoes act recognize 2 contingent ijability Ut discioses 't axistence ¢

fiapitities, contingent 3s5ets and commitments are -aviewed at each Balance Sheet date

Contingent

~ance ircenbives /‘2/?:\

s provident fundg, empioyee state insurance scheme, gratuity, compensated ahsences and perio

-
= o e
° Accountaric | ¢
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(r)

(s)

(1)

short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salares, wncluding non-manetary Senefits that are expected 0 pe settfed wroily within 12 menths after the end of tne period 10 which the
=mployees render the relates service are recogmised in respect of employees’ serylces up to the end of the reporting perod gnd are measured at the amaunts
expactad to S pad when the fiabiitins are settieg. The naniles are presented as clrrent employes penefit obligatipns in the Baiance Sheet.

The cost of shert-term compensated absences Is accounted 3s under:
{3) in case of accumuiated zompensated absences, when empioyees rander the services t

-asincrease therw entitlement of future compensated 3Dsences; and

{b}in case of non-accumuiaing compensated absences, when the absences aCCur.

other jong-term empioyee benefit obligations

3 mantns after the 72 & period 0 which the emplgyess render the
age in respect aof services gravided oy amployees 4p to the
the markot ve'0s at the 2nd of tre 72poFUNG paraa that nave
i actuanal assumpliens 272

re Labilities for earned leave and Sick (pave are nat sxgecred 1o be settlec wholly withn 1
-migtagd sanvile. Tney are sherafore medsurad a5 the présent valu of expelted future payments o o
and of the -eporuing percd using sma grojected oot cradit mainec “ne pensfits are dscountad using
rarme AporonTiaAnng 1o *he terme of the e ated ohhganan Rar—sasursments as a rosyt of expengnis agjusimants and changes
racogmsed N crofit or oss

The goligations 3re presented as currert ahibties in the baiance sneet \f the 2nuty does not have an unconciienal rignt 1o defer seterrert for at east welve

oaths 3fter the reporiing period, regard'ess af wnen the actua: settiementis expectad T2 2CTUT

past-employment obligations

Dafined contnouion 0lans: T Jompaiy s cartribubicn 19 provident tund are consigered as defined contrbuticn pians and are shnargec 35 20 xpanse pasea an
the amount 3f 2antrDuULOn féquired 1o 02 Maae ana when servicas are renderad oy the empioyees

Sefmed penefit Slans. For defined senefit pians intne farm of gratuity, e cost of sroviding Senefits § Jgtermined 4sing the Prajected Unit Credic metnod. Witk
aciuanal valatcnrs Jeng carried put at each Daiance shee: cate actuarial gans and losses are recognisad (n e Other Comprenansive Income o the panod ‘N
which they occur, Past service Zast S recognised immediately to e axtent that the benefits are already vestet anc OINETWISE IS amorised on @ straight-ling Dasis
aver the 3varage perad until ¢he oenefits tecome vested. The ratirement nenefit cbiigat:or razagnisad In the Saiance Sheet -apresents the gresent salue of the
qefined banefit atligation as adjusted fgr ynrecognised past service Cost

Borrowings

Borrowings are imiiaily recogmised at far value, netr of transaction costs neurred, 3orrowings are suhsequently measured at amorvsed cost. Any difference
berween the aroceeds (net of rransaction <osis) and the redemption amount 5 racognisec in Statement af Profit and Loss ovar tne period of the Sorruwings Fees
gaid on the sseaziishment of loan facilities are recognised as transacion Cosis of tne lgan 0 the axtant that ik 5 probaple hat scme or all of the facity will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee s Jeferred until the craw down QCCLrs. To the extent (nere s 00 svigence that it is prababie shat some or 3l of the facility will be
drawn ggwn, the fee |5 capitahsed 4523 arepayment for Sguitity services and amormised over sne penod of the fac.ity to which it relates,

Sorrowings are ramoves f~am the Balance Srest when the cbligatien specified in the contract is discrarged, cancelied or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount af a financal liabidlity that nas oeen sxunguished or transferrad to another party and tre cansideration paid, \nciuding any non-cash assets
transfarred ar labilities assumed, 1S recagnised n Statement of Prafit and Loss a5 other gawns/(losses).

1ght to defer serlement of tne habillty for 3t feast 12 months aftar the
= the end of the reporting sariot with the 2fect thet
ent, if tne lerder agreed, after the reperting 2erad

Borruwings are classified as current liagilities Lnless the Jompany nas an gnconditicnal 7
mezeting period, Where thers s a areacn of 3 materiar provision of 2 lang-term {0an arrangement gn or Betor
rme liaoility Decomes Dayabie a7 gemand an the reporting dats, the antity does not caassify the labdiay as o
ang nefore the appraval of the fnanci2l siatements for :ssue, not to demana payment 353 cansequence of the breach

Borrowing costs

Seneral and specific HorrowIng <oSts +hat are directly astribusable to the acquisition, csnstruction ar progucner of 2 qualifying asset are capitaised during tne
senod of nme 103t 5 raquired [c complete ang prepare e asset for its intended use 07 sale Qualifying asseis are assets tnat necessariy take a substantial penod
of bme o ger ~eady for their ‘ntendac use or sale.

Iqvestment ncame 2arned an the temparary nvestment of specific har-owngs cerding -hewr axpenditure or sualfying ass
costs 2hgiple for zamtaksaron

ars 15 decucted from the Dor-owIng

Jther borrOW:nG COSIS are expensed .n e aericd in which they 2re ncur-ed.

financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to 3 fnancial asset of one eruity argd a fnancal liabiity or equity instrument of another entity

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Campany classifies its financial assets (n the fcliowng measurement categores:

. those 1o De measurad subsequently at fair value {ither through omar comprenansive noome. or rnrouan orafic or 'oss). and

. those measured at amortised cast.

he classification depends on the antity's ousiness model for manzging ine financiai assets and the contractual rerms of the casn flows.

Zor assats measured at far vaive. aains ana ‘gsses wil zither be recorded 0 the swatement 5f profit ar (G588 OF cIher comprehensive (ACOMe.
The rlassification znteria of the Company for dedt and 2ouity instruments 15 groviden as uncer:

(a) Debt instruments

Sepending upon e ousiness modei of the Company, 4ept instruments can be classified under follcwing categenes.
. Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

- Debr instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Deot nns(rumegj:r:;eaSurea at fair valye through profit or loss

%:FS'? ¢ incrrurments whea and ocly wheo = Susiress moge: for Managing those 3ssets cnanges

-
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(b) Equity instruments

The equity Istruments 2an 2@ zlassified as:

- Zquity instruments measured at fair va ue througr orafi
- Equity nstruments measured 3z fasr value through other sgmorenensive NCome R TaCl’)
zquity instruments and dervatives 37€ nermally measurad A1 ° A
oy-instrument nasis) to present n OCT the subsequent Changes agne

or logs (VTR

+ay make an \rrevocable 2lection {on an nsttumenl

HHpwayss, on imha t=roonahion ar ent.iy
2. va'ue of 37 inyEstment 0 an aquity instrument witnin the scope of ind AS -139.

Measurement
P30oa2ile Pl

at 45
5¢ the financia' asset. Transaciion costs of finargial assets carned at

o i~ the -age of 3 N2 miAl asser not at faw vaiue through orofit or i0Ss.
Fair valu2 through profit 37

ac imbial rRcogmibon, ne Cotlpdiy MEFSUES 3 fCnardai 33set
transaction 055 rhat are oractly atributable © the acquisihic”
logs are axpersad (0 the statement of profit ar 10ss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measyrament of dept instruments degencs an rhe Company’s Dusiness modal far managing the gssat ang the cash flgw £haracienstics of tne assel
V¢ categeries g whnich tne ~ampany classifies 115 3200 instruments

n fows wbern tnge st fows
(Gt S Subnian’ oY E3aLRRT 8T amsoise
eroged ar manred interast inceme 1o wete

There are three measurem

weanis af gringoal and IntErest e
FRlEtIORERT

Amoriised cost: Austis Ll are eld for collection 37«
measurel 6f AMo/hwed Cast A giNn Or s2ss o0 3 Jent bensh
mrpgiisadn the satemom o seafit Or 1058 WhEn INe 35580 5
using the effective interast rate method

e pf 2 hocgl

ansels s inciluced o finerlz ASEW

sancial assels, whete

{2 i sanying

nl gaits oF 108505, Test revonue and lors arge gams ang ipssers winch 3t

e camulatve gan o 1053 grovigucly mEEgMISec o1 s regtassfied from 2quiy 10 prait
i incliced D athpr pLomME LG shopal Tastivt interest ralg moethad

s
a3l 2re Trtasle sl gl Taie v

3

Fair waluge through other comprehensive incoma: Asnois it
susels cash flows represant selely paym ol o i aua
smount are taken tnropgh GCH, eerent far the recegmion of g
spcogmace i 2ofil and lass Wi o1 & Ceresagnised
o TeCogTaEd 18 GINeT G e from thest financial 155

5 for —oilespon or contractusl ~ash nd for Seibng b

SRS

ot PQCH are mpasured 3t fair velue thrauqh profit or loss A gain or
coginsed (n the S48
inierest income fram thes

s far aniorised 68t
waly2 wiraugh oroht of ig%s ang s not part ol a naagirg relavionsiug s
anr! 10ss within atker gamﬂ('cssr:s) in the gencd N which b 3nses.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assels :
pss on a 0e2pt nvestment Lhat 1% subzeqguently measured at
3¢ prefiv or loss and peasented net in the gratement 97
financial assets is includad In ather ncome.

1mpairment of financial assets

The Company 3s5€sses 0N a8 farward looking basis the expectzd credit losses associated with 15 assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The

impairment methodalogy 2pplied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit nsk.

For trade receivables oniy, the Company applies the simplified approach permutted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetyme iosses to

be recognised from nitial recognition of the receivables.

Expected credit loss are measured through a loss ailowance at an amount equal o the foliowing:

(2) the 12-months expected credit iosses (expected credit iosses that resuit from default events on financia
reporting date); ar

{b) Full ufetime expectec credit iosses texpected credit losses rhat resit from hose gefault events on e financial »ns|

receivabie Under the simplified appraach, the Company does "ot
t from initial recagn:tion.

| \nstrument that are possble within 12 mornths after

trumert)

The Company follows ‘simplifieg approacn’ for -ecagnition of mpairment loss allowance an trace
crack changes .n credit risk Rather, \t recogmzes \mpairment {0SS allowance Saset an tifetime ECLS 3t eac™ reporting date. ngh

The Sompany us2s 3 Jrovision marrx 1o determine smamrment joss aliewance an the portfolio of trade receivaples. The SToVISTCN ALrX s ~ased on 1ts mstoncaily
obsoervec default "ates over the axgessed ‘ife of the trade raceivable and is acjustat for forward 'ooking estimates. At cvery fepcrung date, tne nistorcal absarved

default rates are updated and changes A the forward-lgoking esumatas a7 analysed.

‘ndividual recervables which are known 10 e Jncollectible are wnitten off py reaucing the carrying amount af trade receivabie and the armount of the 0SS 'S

recognised n the Statement of Profit and Loss within other axpenses,

s.bsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 1o otner \ncome

Derecognition of financial assets

A Bnanciar 3sset s derecogmsed anly when

. the Company nas transferrad tne nanc to receive cash fows from the financiat asset 07
- retains the contractua: rights o recetve the cash flaws of the financial asser, 5Jt assumes 3 contractlal coligaton to pay rhe cash flows to One af more rec:cients
Where the Company has transfersed an asiel, 1he Company evaiuates wnether 't has sransierres sumsie~nally all nsks and ~ewards af awnership of the snancial
asser, In such cases. the fingncial assat s (‘erecognised. ‘Where <he Company bas not narsierrad sunstantially all fisks anc rewards of ownership of t7e nancial
asser, the financial asset 1s nat deracognised.
asset, the financal asset s

here the Company has Aeithar transfarred 3 financiai asset nor retains substanually a1l risks and rewards of owaershio of the financial
the asset is continued o Je

derecognised if the Company has not ratained cantral cf the Apancial asset. Wnere the Company retains ~ontro® of the financial asset,
gnunuing Nvgivement in the financial asset-

-ecogmised to the extent of o
Financial Liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabliities in the following measurement categores:

- Financial Jak asurad at farr vaive throuah profit ar loss

- Financial nips T ag at amortized COSt
{:,iiffﬂ sa}\(\




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apolio Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC3589566
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2025 ] -

—_—

(1)

L}

(u)

v)

(w}

1(iii)

Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

einancial liabilities at fair vaiue thraugh prafit ar loss include financial iiabihties neid for trading. At initlai recogrition, such firancial liabillties are recognised at fair

vaiue

=inancial Labiiibies at fair vaiue through profit or loss are, at each report:ng date, measured at far value with all the changes recognized »n the Staterment of Profit

and Less

Financial liabilities measured at Amortized Cost |

At :rtial recognition, ait financial liabilities other rhan fair valued through profit and loss are recagnised (nitially 2t far value less transaction costs that are
attrbutable to the issue of finarcial iianiity Transaction costs of financiai liabiiity carmed at fair value through profit or less s expensed in the statement of profit
or loss

Aker wmbial recogniion, financia! hablities are supseguently Measured 2t amarised Cost w5 Ng the sifective interest methad Aoy diFeronce Selween th@ proceeds
‘mes af rrangaction costs) and the redemalian amount .S FeCOgRIsSeEs the statement of orofit ar ioss over the period of the financial wabilities using tne effective
nearest method. F2es paid on the estaphsnment of loan facilities are reconnised 45 transacuon osts of the joan to the sxtent that it s arogabie that same o7 all of

the faciiity will be drawn down

De-recognition of financial liability

r axpires. Tha aifference petween the I 1g amount of 3

a firancial liability s deracognised when the obhigauon under the liaoiity is discnargea or cancetiec 0 i
including any non-zash assets rransferrsc 0~ fiapilines

financial liaoility shat mas been extinguished o- transfeerad to anothas party and the consideration paid,
assurned. 15 “ecogmised n the statement of profit ar loss as gther ifcama o finance costs

Offsetting financial Instruments

Financiai assets and liabilities are offset and me ret amount 15 reported i the Salance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there 1s an intention to settie an a fnet basis or reaiise the asset and seftle the llability simultanecusly. The legally enforceatiie nght must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceabie in the normat course of business and n the avent of default, insolventy or bankruptey af the Company or the
counterparty

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency cantracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Cerivative financial instruments are
jnitially recognised at fair vaiue an the date a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of each period

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or ‘oss.

Segment information

ness activity primariy fails within a single business and

The Company (s engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes. As the Company's busi
terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting’

geographical segment 1.e manufacture of steel tubes, there are no disclosures required to be pravided n

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {*MCA") noufies new standards or amendments to the existng standards under Cornpanies (Indian Accounting Standaras) Rules as

\ssued from time to time For the vear ended March 31, 2025, MCA nas not notified any new stangards or amendments to ne existing standards applicable to the
Company




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLCISBIEE
Notes to the financial ts for the year ended March 3%, 2025 .y

_

2 : Property, Plant and Equipment
__ (Rupees in Crores)

_ -
As at As at
March 3_1, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

e IS e —— R ——

Carrying amounts of & ==

c-eghold 'and 42.58 42 58
3uiid ra 281.00 27276
Slant anc Macn.nery 1,000.13 367 10
Office EzuwcmaTt 213 127
vehic'es 250 2.32
Syenitue & TIXtuoes 191 130
Carnouter A

S — _ = — e —
N Freehold " Plant and 0ffice . Furniture &

Particulars Land Buildings Machinery equipments Vehicles Fixtures Computers Total

- e _ — -
Gross sarrying value.

Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 4258 209.14 9.27 3.92 0.77 846 14
adgdiuons 75 48 1321 336 0.36 536 22
Sales / transfer dunrg the year i - x S {32.37
Balance at March 31, 2024 1753 38552  n.4a2 Ta Tae 143 1352.92
Additions 17.24 087 0.15 113.64
Sales ¢ transfer dunnq the year _ e {1206}
Balance at March 31, 2025 42.53 302.8G 1 5.15 128 1, 461.57
Assumulaced depreciation

Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 3.3C 0.06 .85 o 10 0.20 20.3¢C
Siiminat an an dissos3l of assets (2.59}
Dapreciation 2xpense ) - 4R 0.3% . B2 S 53.2€
aalance at March 31, 2024 1.36 0.24 0.47 70.91
zlimenatian oo aissosa. of assets - 11 .44)
Depreciation expense €51 ¢.38 B 129 022 2.3% H1 5%
Balance at March 31, 2025 F —— 0 9 2.65 0.46 0.53 130.88
N rrying yalue R = A
Balance at March 31, 2024 42.58 272.76 967.10 1.27 2.92 1.80 0.66 1,289.08
Salance at March 31, 2025 42.58 281.00 1,000,13 2.13 2.50 1.91 0.45 1,330.69

Note :
71} Property. plant and equipement a 025 See note 16 and 20 for loans taken aganst which

:hese graperty, plant and equipment are pledged

s detalled 11 note 2 have beer pledged as security far '0ans taxen as a: March 31, 2

3. Capital Work In Progress (CWIP)

particulars Building
As at April 1, 2023 53.16
A¢e  addltions duning the jear 25.45
_ess Transfer to property, piant anc equipment (see 1ot 2 Y6 48
L6 48
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 213
Acd Additions during the vear 2279
_ess ; “ransfer "o property, plant and equipment (see note 2} {17.24% (76 944 {95.33
Closing balance as at March 31, 2025 7.G8 154.13 _I.G_‘.I_A_SJ_=
Note :
a5 Jn date of baiance sneel, there are No capital work-1n-pregress projects whose -omnleticn ¢ averdug or 1as axc2eded ha <ost comparec 19 (s original plan
(a) Ageing of Capital work in progress is as belaw :
I - e e e — _iAmount in crorcs)
Amaunt i CWIP for a perioc of srojects in Projects Amouni As at
progress temporarity March 31, 2025
suspended
A e —— —
_ess than 1 year 160.77 - 160.77
1-2 years 1.04 = 1.02
Total 161.81 - 161.81
{Amount in crores)
Amaunt in CW1P for s period of Projects in Projects Amount as at
progress temporarily March 31, 2024
suspended
- —
Less than L sear 4.51 - 3
1-2 years 2.15 - 3.1
2-3 years = =
4.66 = 4.66

Total




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial stat ents for the year ended March 31, 2025

()

(v)

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

Category of ROU
Asset

As at April 1, 2023

Additions / (adjustments}
Depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2024
Depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2025

The Company has taken leasehald land having lease term of 30 years The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assats

amortisation expense in the statement of Profit and Lass

Above ROU assets nave been pledged as secunty far term loans raken as at Marcn 31, 2025. See note 16 and 2
oledged.

The foliowing is the break-up af current and non-current lease habilites as at March 33, 2025 and March 31, 2024

s included under depreciation ard

0 for lgans taken against which these assets are

fRupess in Crores}

:’arﬁcum.'s as at As at
. . B - Mzrch 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Current lease hability 1.86 1.86
Non-current iease liabilicy —— 26.20 2596
Total 28.26 . 27.82
The following is the movement in (ease iiabilities dunng the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
. (Rupees in Crores)

. As at As at
Rarticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning T 27.82 29.94
Additions
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.57 0.17
Deletions / adjustment 0.73 (0.43)
Payment of lease llabilities {1.88) {1.86)
Balance at tha end 28.26 27.82

The weighted average incremental barrowing rate applied to lease !labilitles as at March 31, 202515 5.50 %

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturties of lease 'iabilites as at Marcn

(March 31,2024 15 5.50%).

31, 2025 and March 32, 2024 on an ungiscounted Dasis

(Rupees in Croresi

Particulars

Less than one year
One to five years

More than five years
Total

The Company does not face a sigrificant .iguidity nsk with regard to its lease liabiities as the current assets
|ease ‘iabilities as and when they fall gue

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
186 186
7 44 7 a4
o ATSI_ oy 4945
56.89 58,75

are suffigent to meet the obligations related to

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases is Rupees Nil for the year anded March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 : Rupees Nil).




a)

(i)
il
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200Dt2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements foc the vear ended March 31, 2025 o —

Investment
{Rupees in Crores)

i ncacured consdered anodt .
Particula As at As at
eular March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investments in equity instruments carried at fair value through the Other
Comprehensive Income - (unquoted, fully paid) :
25,000 (March 31 2524 Nii® equity smares of 2udees 10 eacn fully paid up in ASL Apoile 023
Sayndation {see nore [i) delow;
‘nvestment in Irsuancs-hnied funds in Baja: Aitance [s2e note {ni below} 0452
t38.28,125 {March 21, 2024 £ o8
Samruda) 2rivate _mated {see ok —_— - ——
11.38 -
Investments in compulsory convertibie debentures carried at cost - (unquated,
fully paid) :
10,69,587 (March 31, 2024: Nil) compulsory convertible debentures of Rupees 10C each 10 70
fully paig uo In FP Sam-uddl Private Limited
10.70 .
oG 22.07 S
Notes :

rores 1n APL Apolic Feurgatcn {‘Fa.ndaticn’}, &

Trne Company dunng the orevious year enced Marcn 31, 2025 nas 'nvested Rupees 0.C3 ¢
ngeake CSR activities.

Compary registered under sect on 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Scundation was incorporatad on Aprit 19, 2022 cu
As at Marchk 31, 2625, the Campany noids 16.67% (Marzh 31, 2024 :Nil) equity shares of the Foundation.

The Company du-rg the year ended March 31, 2025 has invseted Rupees G 52 crores {March 31,2024 M) in insurance- inked funds managed
by Baja) Allianz Life [nsurance Company

During the current year endec Marc~ 31, 2025, The Compa-y .nvested 'r 1,08,28,125 squity srares cf Rupees 10 eacn of FP Samruddi Private
Limited, a Comgpany engaged :n e business of oroviding solar energy to its customers. The Company 1cids 24% equity shares of FP Samrudc:
orivate Limited as at March 31, 2025

Other financial assets (Non—current)

{Unsecured, considered good)
{Rupees in Crores)

e - N ) - As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security deposi® 12.65 13.35
In margin money ~1th Matunty more thap 12 months at inception - with banks 1.06

13.71

Tatal

Non-current tax assets (net)

... _{Rupees in Crores}

> As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance income tax {net of arpvisien 2s at March 31, 2025 Rupees Nl Previcus year ended 540 330
March 31, 2024 Rugees N}

_ 5.01 3.30

Totat —

Other non-current assets

rJnsecured, considerad gooa)
(Rupees in Crores)

) As at As at
Particuiars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Zzou@’ advances 48 39 . §5 84
Total 48.59 | 69.84
Inventor: — (Rupees in Crores)
Particul As at As at

RISSOISE March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Raw material 15665 34 16
Work in progress 90.40 101.7
Finished goods (:ncluding stack-in-transit} 102.34 106 35

2402 17 57

Stock in trade
Stores and spares 21.74 1£.33

Rejection anc scrap . 9.04 5.65
Total _ 3?_8.?9 242.54
Notes:

gnised as expense dunng the year amounted to Rupees 3,972.59 crores (March 31, 2024

= {Rupees in crores)

Cost of inventory (Including stores & spares) reca
Rupees 2,752.2C crores}

Details of stock-in-transit o As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Finished goods 4171 28.22
0.55 o

Provision for siow moving :nventory of stores & spares. (See note 32()
Th:/njﬁﬂn ~f waljating af ipvaptarias has nean starad in antg 1(ii)(1) of margn 2con
A0

V5 s
L]

"'.‘eE-_"; aledged 3s secunty towards Company's borrowings from panks /Q;_\-'
o3 \ of e
+( Chartered |
o] anters —
=) Accountanis ¢




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-UZ?ZODDLZOI.SPLC?]SBSSS
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 — _

10 Trade Receivables o _ {(Rupeesin Crores)
5 As at As at
PRlLculars _ ) Masch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cagi.dered Good- unsecured

(1) Related parties (see note 36) - 36.89
(ii) Other than related parties 14.38 11.73
14.38 48.62

Total

(:) The average credit pericd on sale of goods 1s 0-60 cays. No interest s charged on the trade receivables for the amount averdue above the credit
period. There are no customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of trade recetvaples except as foilows :

{Rupees in crare)
As at
March 31. 2025

Particulars

There are nao customers who represent more than 13% of the tota! balarce of trade recelvables in current year

(Rupees in crore)

As at

Particulars March 31, 2024

Customer A 29.58

Custame- B 7.23
36.81
75.71%

%, of totai trade recetvatles

1~ getermining the allowance for credit iosses of rade recevabies, tne Company nas Jsed a crachcal exped ent 3¥ somputing the expected cradit 1055
alowance ‘- Trade ~eceivables Sased on a provisicn matnix, The provisicn matnx takes it accourt histoncal credit ioss expenence and is aciusted for
forward looking information. Tne expected credit ipss atiowance is based on the 3geing of tne ~eceivatles that are Jue and rales used in tha orowvision
matrix.

(1) Ageing of trade receivables and credit risk arising there from is as below :
(Rupees in Croras)

— As at March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for following periods from due date oi payment
Particulars Less than 6 months More than 3 Total

Not yet due six months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years

(a) Undisputed trade
receivables -

considerad good 5.84 A3 Tald —— = - = 14.38
5.84 6.41 2.13 - - . 14.38

Less : Ailowance for credit fosses
14.38

Net trade receivabies ——

= AsatMarch31,2024 .
GUSLBNGIY (b ionawiig periods from Zuz date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 months More than 3
- = Total
Not yet due sixmonths ___ -lysar___ _1 2 years_ 2_3 years vears - =
(28) undisputed rade
racewvables -
considered good 8.18 40.44 d — 4 — : 48.62
8.18 40.44 = a . - 48.62
Less : Allowance for credit (0sses ———
Net trade receivables ______48.62
U Saang BN,
) Y3\ ST N
= Chartered | — I

3 Accountanis | ¢o




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966

Motes to the financial stat, ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
11 Cash and cash equivalents
. (Rupees in Crorg_s__)__
. As at As at
P ul
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a}  Cash on nand (see ncte below (1))
{B} Balances with banks
- In current accounts 0.39 40.02
- in cash credit 461
(¢} In fixed deposits with Mmaturity 'ess than 3 months at Inception (see nete below ) - 183.55
Tota! 5.00 223.57
Note:
(i) Cash saiance as at March 31, 2025 and Marzh 31, 2024 15 less than Rupees C.01 crores.
(il) Fixed desasits of Rupees 118.55 crores are given as a security against the overdrawn facilities avalied from the banks in previous year, (see note
20)
12 Loans (Current)
(Unsecureq, considereg good)
(Rupees in Crores)
i As at As at
1
farticiilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(3} Loans & advances to employees 0.52 - 0.20
Total 0.52 0.20
13 Other financlal assets {current)
(Unsecured, considered good)
o (Rupees in Croras)
As at As at
il March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Interest accruec but not due on fixed depasits 0.30 0.73
(B} In xed depasits with maturity mere than 12 months at inception - with banks (see note celow) 4.96 4.38
(c} Claim receivaole 12.67 8.07
(¢} Government grant receivable (see note 33 (iiy) 9.36 4.23
{e) Exportincentive receivable 0.40 Q.64
Total _ 27.69 18.05
Note:
As at March 31, 2025 Fixed deposits of Rupees 0.06 crores are giver as a secunty agalnst the overdrawn facilities avalled from the banks.
14 Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
= — S (Rup In Crores)
: As at As at
P
anticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{a} Balances with government authanties:
-Goods & service tax credit receivable {GST) 79.00 130.98
{b) Custom duty recoverable 0.18 0.44
{c) GST refuna receivable on exports 0.60 2.72
(d) Clalm receivable - 2.21
(e} Prepad expense 0.58 0.29
(A Advance to supcllers 38.58 87.77
Total 118.94 224.41

o el
*( Chartereg ]_’_._
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC35B966
___ Notes to the financial statements for the year ended MarcEE, 2025
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e
(bj

i8

(a)

(b)

19

Provisions {Non-current}

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31. 2024

Provision for cratuity {see note 34) 1.94 1.32
Provisian for compersatec absences 1.1¢ 0.67
3.13 1.59

Total

Deferred Tax liabilities (net)

Component of deferred tax assets and liabilities are :

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of :

(Rupees in Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024

Property, plan: anc equipments 40 85 25.86
Total deferred tax liabilities (A) 40.85 25.86
Deferred Tax Assets on account of :

Provisior fc- empioyee benefit expenses C.68 G 36
R.ght of use 2ssets =

Others g 58 .
Carry forwarc ¢f income tax 'oss . o 3.58

Total deferred tax assets (B) 4.83

Disclosed as Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net - A-B) = 36.0%

s  Recoanise
As at Recognised aEReGn

(Rupees in Croses)

. B . : = other As at
d f 5
Movement in deferred tax liabilities / asset April 1, in profit & comprehensive March 31, 2024
2023 loss j

- = income ——
Deferrad Tax Liabilities (A)
Property, plant and equipments 7.30 1B.36 25 66
Right tc Use Da R J.19
Total 7.30 - 25.88
Deferred Tax Assets (8)
Provision for employee benefit expenses 0.22 c.0s 0.04
Carry forward of income tax ioss 5.0 12.25 =

5.23 12.25 C.0< .
Deferred tax liabilities (Net - A-B) 106 6.21 06.09)
_ . ~ (Rupees in Crores)
doin Mecommies  RSTRESIN
Movement in deferred tax liabilities / asset 31, in profit & comprehensive March 31, 2025
loss
o 2024 INCOme _

Deiarred Tax Liavilitias (4]
Property, niant and equipments 25,66 15.55
Right to Use 019 {255) - _—
Total 25.85 15.00 -
Deferred Tax Assets (B}
Provision for ema.oyee bernefit expenses 0.35 0.38 (0 04) G 65
Carry “orward of (ncome fax ioss 18.27 {14 68} 3.59
Others - 055 _0.55
Total 18.62 {13.75) .53
Deferred tax Assets (Net - A-B) 725 503

Other non-current liabilites

{Rupees in crare)

Particulars

As &t
March 31. 2024

Ceferred imcome
- Purchase of equipment !see note (¢} Deiow!
Toral

Note :

46,60

49.60

Deferred income amses in rescect of impart of capital goods without payment of custom duty under Exoort Promotron Capital Goods Scheme.
The income Is recognisec 1n P-oflt or loss on a straignt line basis aver the usefu! life of the related assets. (See note 33({5){2}}.




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC3S58966
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

20

21

(a)

22

N T w

23

AU

24

(@)
{2)

Borrowings (Current)

(Rupees in crore)

As at
March 31, 2025

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Loan repayable on demand
- From banks {Secured)

(i) Working capital facilitles (see note below) 1.24 2,00
Current maturity of nan-current borrowings (see note 16} 148 21 148.21
Total _:_"—_Ws'_ '_ﬁ_i
Nature of security :

ana Future currang assets of the Campany and Secocrac {narge on

Work rg Caoital fac liues are securag by first 5ar passu chasge on entrg present
entire present and future mcvasie fixed assets cf the Comcany situated situated at 3a
are furtne- secured by second charge on immavable fixed as5s5ets hrough eguitacie morigage of the .and and puiding
Capital facilities are “urther secured Sy Corporate guaraniee oF APL apcilo Tubes Limitec {Tre nolding company;

Trade payables

icda nazar, raipur,Chhattisgart. Working caprta facilkues
of tne Company. Werking

(Rupees in crore )

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total outstanaing duws 91 Mucro enterprises and small entarprises 2.61 1.56

Toral outstanding dues of crec tors other than mic™s entersrises anc smali enterprises 309.22 506.52

311.83 _507.08

Total

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction :

(Rupees in Crores)

Qutstanding for following peri_ods from due date of

Particulars Total
o payment N
Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 years
B o year
As at March 31, 2025
(a) Micro, smaill and medium enterprises - 2.61 - 2.61
(b) Others 90.57 218.62 0.03 309.22
Total 90.57 321.23 0.03 —  311.33
As at March 31, 2024
(a) Micro, small and medium enterprises - 0.66 - 0.66
(b) Others 5 449 67 - 505.42
Total A5G.33 ) = 207038
Other financial liabilities
- - (Rupees in Crores)
i As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payabie on purchase of property, plant ana equioment = - 5.94 5.50
Retention money payatle 3.88 6.21
Interest accrued on Sorrswings ~6.79 . 2 22.38
. 16.52 . 34.09
Other current liabilities
= (Rupees in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
. ) Mmarch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Statutory remittances 374 3.01
Acvance from CLSLOmErs 42,05 8.19
Ceferred income (see note 19}
- Purchase of eauipment 2.88 2.63
48.67 13.83

Total

Provisions (Current)

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
provision for gratulty {see ncte 34} 0.02 0.01
Provision far compensated apsences 0.14 0.08
0.16 0.09
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known as APL Apallo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Sale of Praaucts ;see note [ beiow;
Other operating revenue (see aote (i) below)
Total

Notes:

Reconciliation of revenue recoanised with contract price:

Particulars

Caontract Price
Adjustments for -
Oiscounts and Inventves
Revenue from Operations

Other Operatina Revenues comprises

Year ended
March 31, 2025

_(Rupees in Crores)

Year ended

March 31, 2024

4,527 88 3,063 34
L 17207 13350
_ 4.599.96 3,189.22

(Rupees in Crores)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
= o 4,748.9/ 3,147 03
(221083 {83.69)
B 3.527.89 2,053.33

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

Sale of scrap

Sale of rejected pipes
Export incentive
Total

Other income

Particulars

Interest on fixed deposits

Gain on foreign currency transactions {net)}
Profit on sale of fixed assets

Miscellaneous income (see note below)
Total

Note:

Misceilaneous income includes (a) Export obligation deferred
and (b) Other miscellanecus income of Rupees 0.35 crore {March 31, 2024 : Rupees 1.44 crore).

crares)

Cost of material consumed

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I 12858 sa 15
43.49 40.28
- 113
= 172.07 125.90
_ ) (Rupees in Crores)
o o Year ended Year ended
R _March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
1.32 0.30
1.69 3.44
0.08 0.11
3.58 2.17
~ 6.67 3.62

income amortisation of Rupees 2.53 crores (March 31, 2024

(Runees in Crores)

Particulars

inventories of ~aw material at the Deginning of the year
Aad: Purchases during the year

-2s55. Invertores of raw material as at the enc of the year
Total .

Change in inventories

Year ended Year ended
oo March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
94 16 106.62
3,628 80 2,536.19
15C.65 34 16
3.573.3: 2,548.65

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods

Stock in trade

Wark 1n progress

Rejection and scrap

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock in trade

Finished goods

Work in progress

Rejection and scrap

Total

Accountan:c | ¢;

Year ended
March 31. 2025

Year ended
March 31. 2024

102 94 106 39
24 .02 17 57
5C.40 101 73

3.04 5.65
226.40 232.35
17.57 .
106.39 58.46
101.73 118 10
5.66 217
232.35 188.73
5.95 [33.62)

Rupees 0.73



APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200D12019PLC358966

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

29 Employee benefit expenses
_ ___ (Rupees in Crores)
particulars Year ended Year ended
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Salaries and wages 71.97 52.10
{b) Contribution to provident fund {see note 34) 3.34 2.88
(c) Gratuity expense {see note 34} 091 Q.73
(d) Share-based payments to emplcyees {see note 32(iv}; 3.22
(e} Staff welifare expenses = 2.1i3 .68
Total 8157 56.39
£ The Campany ras cnarges back the "Share based =xpenses’ 'o empioyeas incurred By T 10 its group compames at cost basis. The
allocation of common expenses nas peen carried out on the Dasis of share oouons held of tne Company by emplovees of the respective
companies

‘ncludes commission of Ruoees 3 36 crore} {Year ended Marcn

oy Suring tha ysar the Company recognised ar amount of Rupees 4 85 crore (
ageriai personne! The details of sucr

31, 2024 Ruoess 3.46 crore, nclud2 commission of 25. (.13 crore) as remuneration to xev man
remuneraticn :s as beicw

1) Shert term employee berehts 432 331
‘1) Post empioyment benefits {gratu:ty expense) G.02 010
{iii) Cther long term employee benefits {ieave encashment expense) — G.00 0.05
= 485 3.36
30 Finance costs
(Rupees in Crores)
i T i Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
{ED Interest expense B
(1) term ioan 52,67 48.39
(i} debentures 098 15.35
(ni) working capital facilities 0.68 4.29
{iv) on leases 2.29 1.61
56.62 69.64
(2) Other borrrowing cost 1.59 1.89
Total 58.21 3‘1‘53
31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
B {Rupees in Croras)
. Year ended Year ended
o) ) o March 31,2025 March 3. 2024
{a} Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment /see note 2} T T 5141 53.20
b} Depreciation on night of use assets (see note 4; 097 0.86
Total ~ 62.38 54.06
32 Other expenses
(Rupees in Crores)
i Year ended Year ended
ERECIS B March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a} Freight putward expense 1958.12 12723
‘b Power & fuel expense {see note ‘0l Delow) 125.78 765.88
o Consumption of store & spares 5172 36.56
(d) Repair and maintanancs =
(i) Builging 0.0% -
[it) Plant ana machinary 4 82 1.88
(iit) Cthers 0.3% 0.10
(e} Traveilling ang conveyance 228 2.1
3! Legal ard professional expense (see note (i} below) 147 1.85
{qy Corporate Sccial Resgensidibity axpense {see note 41{c}} 029 -
2! Provision for slow moving stock .55 -
] Agvertisement and sales gromonion 3.20 G.79
1) Fees & taxes expense 9.51 0.88
{ K Security services 1.82 091
i Miscellarneous exoenses 442 9.47
(m) Management sunoort services [see note (i) below!} 1747 407
Total - ~413.27 262.83
Note :-
() Legal & professional charges nclude auditors remuneration {excluding indirect taxes) as follcws
(a) To statutory auditors
For audit 0.3C 328
For reimbursement of expense 0.02 )
Total 0.32 0.28

én The Comoany is eligibie for incentives as per Industrial Poiicy 2019-24 of Government of Cnrattisgarh for it's plant at Raipur,
Chhatisgarh. Tne Company nas during the year March 31, 2024, nas recewved requisite approval in wus regard. Accardingly the Company
has -acognised 4u- ~g ine year endec 31 March, 2025 cumuiative electricity duly 5uns_._m-,."gi Eonees 5 13 crores (Mamch 31, 2024, Rupees
# - Lo ‘.\

4.23 =rores} woich mas oesc -emad with sower & fuel expense. fat LN

g :
7} Allocation of common expenses f =Y M

During the year. the haicing Compary has charged back ine commaon expenses mL.%_i-;u LY L of

f.4 7 of group companies at cost basis
/g companies, as per latest Ainancial

Tne ailg " :f;g_@mcc experses has oeep carried out on the Dass of turap¥ér of sgspec
state 1Ags \ e
e B L — o 4
SNy =
@\ a2
R

*9 Chartered ?_“
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

33

(3)

(c)

34

(a)

(b)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

{Rupees in Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

Particulars March 31, 2025

Contingent Liabilities

Disputed Ciaims in respect of imcome tax 1.58 1.58
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remamning to be executed on capitai account anac net sroviced for

41.92 54 23

- property, plant and equipment (net of capital advance)

The Company has obtained EPCG (Export Promotien Capital Goods Scheme] Censes for importing the capital goods
witnout payment of basic custem duty agamnst suomission of bonds.

Thne =xzort obiigatior 15 te be fuifilied within 3 period of 6 y=ars fram the gate of issuarce of lcense. Linder this scheme
*he Company has to acmeve FOB value of exporis which will be 6 times of dury saved. Accerdingly the Company IS
required to export of FOB value of Rupees 367.45 crores (March 31, 2024: Rucees 238.46 crores) aganst wnich e
Company nas saved a duty of Rupees 51.24 crores (March 31, 2024 : Rupees 39 .74 crores).

whieh zre 1ssued 3fter corsidenng requirements per operating
does not have any long term commitments or material
were any matenal

The Comgany has other commitmerts, for purcnase orders
cycie for purchase of services, empioyee’s benefits. The Company
non-cancellable centractual commitments/contracts, including semyabive conrracts for which Enere
foreseeable losses.

There were NO amounts whicn were required {0 De sransferred o the Investor Education and Protechion Fund by the
Caompany

Employee benefit obligations

o - ) {Rup=2as in Troras)
B As at March 31, 2025 !

Particulars  Current| Non-current i Total
Gratuity

Present value of obligation 0.02 1.94 1.6
Total employee benefit obligations 0.02 1-91 B 1_9_6__
. B " As at March 31, 2024

articulars Current| Non-current : Total
Gratuity -

Present value of obligation 0.01 1.32 1.33
Total employee benefit obligations 0.01 1.32 1.33

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an unfunged defined benefit gratuity piar. The gratuity scheme provides of fump sum payment to
vesten employees at refiremant/death while in employment or on “erminaticn of empioyment of an amount equivaient to
15 days salary payable for gach completed year cf service or oart thereof 1n excess of & months subject to a hmit of
Rupees 0.20 crore {March 31, 2024 Rupees 0.20 crore). Vesting dccurs upon completion of 5 years of service,

Defined contribution plans

The Comgpany makes Provident Fund contributions which are Hefined contrbutien pians, for qualify'ng employees. Under
rra schemes, the Company 's reguired to contriouie a specifiec perzentage of =g payroll costs to fund the nenefits. The
Company ~ecognised total exoense of Rupees 3.34 crores (Year endec March 31, 2024 Rupees 2.51 crores) for Provident
=.p¢ contributions. The contributions payaole to these pians oY the Comoany are at rates specified i the rules of the
schemes. The obiigation of the Company s imitec rhe amournt contributed and it Nas no surtner contractual nor any

constructive obligatien.
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 .

Movement of defined benefit obligation:

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are
as foliows:

Particulars = ~ Gratuity
Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 - ' 0.75
Current service cost 0.67
Interest expense/(income) 0.06
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.73
Remeasurements
effect of change in financial assumpticns 0.06
affect of experence adjustments 0'13_
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.19
Employer coniributions : Benefit payments {0.33)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.33
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.33
Current service cost 082
Interest expense/(income) 0.10
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.92
Remeasurements
effect of change in financial assumptions 0.09
effect of experience adjustments (0.23)
effect of Chanqe in Demoaraphic Assumptions (0.12)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (0.26)
(0.03)

Employer contributions : Benefit payments
___1.96

Balance as at March 31, 2025 ——

Post-Employment benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows*

Year ended Year ended

FagticISES March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Discount rate 5.80% 7.05%
Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality 2012
2012-2014 2014

Attriticn Rate
18 to 30 vears 5.00% 3.00%
30 to 45 years 4.00% 2 00%
2.00% 1.00%

Above 45 years
Notes : )
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government Securities as at Baiance Sheet date for
the estimated term of obfigation.

The estimate of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand 'n the employment market.

<[ Charterea
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
{(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)

CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(e) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined pbenefit obligation tc changes in the weighted principat assumotions 15

Particulars

| Year ended
|' March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

!
!
T

(f

(g)

35

:Era—tuitv ) i
iDiscount rate tincrease by 1%) 10261, {0.19)
'Salary growth rate {increase by 1%, - 934! 0:24,
IParticulars ‘_ Year ended | Year ended !
| March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Gratuitv i

\Discount -ate (gecrease by 1%l ] — 0.31] 0.24
|Salarv arowth rate [decrease ov %) (0.25% (0.19)]

The above sensitivity anaiyses are pased on a change in an assumption while holding ali other assumotiors constant. In
oractice, this is unikeiy to occur, and changes in some cf the assumptions may be correlated. When caiculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same methed i.e, orojacted unit credit
method has been applied as that used for calculating the defined benefit iabuity recognised :n the palance sheet.

Risk exposure

The definea cerefit obiigations have tne undermentioned risk exposures :

Interest rate risk : The defined tenefit obligaticn calculated uses a discount rate basec cn government bonds. If bond
yieids fall, the defined benefit cbiigation will tend to increase.

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined nenefit cbligation.

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic naturs of decrements that include
mortality, withdrawa!, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on tne defirea benefit obligation is not
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criter:a.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined berefit ocbligation 5 15,59 years,(March 31,2024 : 19 68 years)
The expected maturity analysis of undiscountea gratuity s as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Less than a vear

Between ! - 2 yvears
Between 2 - 3 years
Between 3 - 4 vears
Between 4 - 5 years
Bevond 5 vears 2.30
Total 2.94

coooo
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Earnings per Equity share
The foilowing table reflects the prcfit and shares ¢ata usec 'n the computation of basic ard di:icted earnirgs oer share.

(Rupees in crore, uniess otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Ranticilags March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Profit for tne year attributabie to the equity holders of the Company used in 141.58 26.21
caicutar rg bas:c and diiuted earn.~gs per share (A

1,13,42,466 61,25,68,306

Weighted average numper of eguity shares used as the denomimator .n
caiculating basic and diluted earnings per srare (B)

a) Basic/e_ar'tings per share {in Rupees) (A/B) 0.43
e} Dbx.;:edu]g\a,rﬂ\%gs;oer share (:n Rupees) (A/B) 7 0.43
A D u \ { «
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements

Related party transactions

Details of related parties: Name of reiated parties
(i) Holding Company APL Apollo Tubes Limited
(ii) Fellow subsidiaries Apollo Metalex Limited (formerty known as Apolia

Metalex Private Limited)
APL Apalle Mart Limited
Biue Ocean Projects Private Limited
A P L Apciic Tubes Company L.L.C.

{iii) Key Management Personnel (KMP} Mr. Rahul Gupta (Manaaing Director)
Mr. Vinay Gupta (Director)
Mr. Sanjay Gupta (Director)
Mr Rohan Gupta {Director)
Mr Amresn Xumar Mishra {Chief Financiai Officer?

‘iv) Enterprises significantly influenced by KMP and their relatives Apallc Pipes Limited

(with whom transactions have taken place during the year) SG Ornate Solar Solutions Private Limited
SG Green Logistics Private Limited

Transactions during the year
(Rupess in crare)

- '_ = _?; ) Enterprises
| . significantly
Particulars Holding Fe.llow' Management influenced by Total
Company Subsidiaries Personnel h
(KMP) KMP and their
- — _ retatives
Purchase of raw material & stock in trade (net of discounts)
APL Apolio Tubes Limited c.Y 426.98 . é 426.98
P.Y 198.68 198.68
Apollo Metalex Limited cy 0.19 - - 0.19
P.Y. _ 2.94 - 2.94
c.y 225.58 C.13 227.317
p.Y 198.68 2.94 - 201.62
Purchase of stores and spares
APL Apolla Tubes Limited cY 2.64 - 2.64
P.Y. 3.01 . . - 3.01
Apollo Metalex Limited c.Y . - = ° :
PY 0.10 = 010
A P L Apollo Tubes Company L.L.C. cy 2 - .
P.Y - 0.01 . : 0.01
Apollo Pipes Limited cy . . 0.06 0.06
P.Y ] 0.07 0.07
G=Y 2.64 - - 0.06 2.70
PY 3.01 0.11 0.07 3.19
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
APL Apollo Tubes Limited c.y 1.03 . 1.03
P.Y 23.96 23.96
Purchase of Service
SG Green Logistics Private Limited C.Y. - - 16.19 16.19
PY. 221 - £ e 2.21
Sale of goods (net of discounts)
APL Apcllc Tubes Limited C.Y. 905.27 - . . 905.27
P.Y. 666.88 566.88
Apollo Metalex Limited c.y. 0.48 0.48
P.Y. 0.20 0.20
A P L Apolio Tubes Company L.L.C. c.y. - 20.30 . - 20.30
P.Y - -
SG Ornate Solar Soiutions Private Limited cy.
P.Y. - -
Apollo Pipes Limited C.Y. 0.01 0.01
PY. - a - . =
c.y. 905.27 20.78 - 0.01 926.05
PY 666.88 0.20 - E 667.08
Sale of scrap
APL Apollo Tubes Limited c.Y 26.10 - - . 26.10
p.Y 28.18 - _ - 28.18
A LR GIRN
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known

as APL Apollo Building Produ

CIN-U272000L2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements

cts Private Limited)

particulars

Sale of property, plant and equipment

APL Apcllo Tubes Limited

Sale of License
Apolio Pipes Limited

Salary

Mr Rcmi Sehga!

Mr Amresh Kumar Mishra
Mr. Rohan Gupta

Mr Rahut Gupta

Interest Expense
APL Apollo Tubes Lirmited

Apollo Metalex Limited

Interest Income
APL Apotlo Tubes Limited

Loan taken
APL Apolio Tubes Limited

Apoilo Metalex Limited

Loan repayment
AFL Apolio Tubes Limited

Apollo Metalex Limited

Loan Given
APL Apolio Tubes Limited

Loan received back
APL Apoilo Tubes Limited

Apollo Metalex Limited

Allocation Common Expenses

APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Allocation of share based expense

APL Apolio;ﬁbesl L:n‘u%

Rupees in crore)

Entarprises

Joldne) < ibidiaiies Managemel® influencedby  Total
n u 5
(KMP) KMP and their

cY 750 7.50
oY 18.65 o 2 18 65
oz
PY 0.47 Q.47
C.
p.Y . .
cy - 0.39 0.39
PY. 0.38 0.38
c.Y 0.50 0.50
PY 0.18 0.18
C.Y. - 3.96 3.96
DY, - - 2.8% Z.8%
c.Y. - - 3.85 - 3.85
P.Y. - - 3.45 - 3.45
C.Y 6.44 6.44
P.Y 15.37 . 1537
C.Y. - 3.73 3.73
P.Y . .
c.Y 6.44 3.73 - - 10.17
P.Y 15.37 - - - 15.37
C.Y. . .
.Y 0.14 B - o 0.14
c.y. 710.00 - 710.00
PY 508.75 - E 508.75

Y - 300.00 - 300.00
PY . . - e
c.Y 710.00 300.00 - 1,010.00
p.Y. 508.75 - - - 508.75
Y 548.58 648.68
p.Y 788.75 - 788.75
GiY . 300.00 390.00
PY -
cy 648.68 300.00 948.68
oY 788.75 - 788.75
C_Y - - .
pP.Y. 164.91 - - - 164.91
c.Y : : .
P.Y. 164,91 164.91
c.Y. - s .
PY. z
c.Y. - = - - -
P.Y 164.91 - - - 164.91
c.Y 17.47 17 47
PY 4.18 = 418
c.Y 3.22 322
p.Y ; .

signiﬁcantly




(Formerly know

APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
Notes to the financial statements

n as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)

(Rupees in crore)

“Enterprises

Key significantly
particulars Holding Fe.llt_)w_ Management Influenced by Total
Company Subsidiaries Personnel KMP and their
(KMP) N
— . ) rejatives
Rent Paid
APL Apollo Tubes Limited cy 1.86 - . 186
oY 1.86 - - 2 ___ 186
Equity Share Capital Issued (including Securities premium)
APL Apolio Tubes Limited C.Y. 198.18 198 18
PY 200.00 e o _ 200 GO
Balances outstanding at the end of the year
Trade payable
Apolic Pipes Limited c.Y
P.Y
Mr. Amresh Mishra cy .
PY 0.02 002
Mr, Rahu! Gupta c.Y 015 015
PY = 0.42 0.42
Mr. Rohan Gupta c.yY 303 0.03
PY 0.04 0.04
APL Apollo Tubes Limited cy 3.30 - - 3.30
PY. 1.21 - - - 1.21
c.Y. 3.30 - 0.19 = 3.49
P.Y. 1.21 D.48 1.69
Advance from Customer
A P L Apolle Tubes Company L.L.C. c.Y - 1.31 - - 1.31
PY - - - -
Advance to Supplier
SG Green Logistics Private Limited c.y - - - 0.77 0.77
P.Y - ] s
Loan Payable
APL Apollo Tubes Limited C.Y 61.32 - - - 61.32
PY = - = = =
Interest Payable
APL Apollo Tubes Limited c.yY 1.43 - = - 1.43
P.Y. 6.13 - = - 6.13
Apollo Metalex Limited c.Y 3.73 - = 3.73
PY - . e _
C.Y T 1.43 3.73 5.17
p.Y 6.13 - s 6.13
Expense payable
APL Apoilo Tubes Limited cY 12.47 12.47
p.Y 4.54 e - _ 454
Claim receivables ) i
APL Apotlo Tubes Limited c.Y. 8.66 8.66
P.Y 10.91 : : 10.91
APL Apollc Tubes Limited C.Y. - :
PY 1.59 : 1.59
A P L Apollo Tubes Company L.L.C. c.y. - i
PY 29.58 29.58
Apollo Metatex Limited cy
P.Y 0.16 0.16
Apollo Pipes Limited c.y - '
p.Y i : -
c.Y. - - - - =
P.Y. 1.59 29.74 - - 31.33
Advance to Employee
Mr. Amresh Kumar Mishra C.Y. - . 0.05 - C.05
P.Y. - - - = =
Notes :
C.v. represents figures for tne year ended Marcn 31, 2025 and P Y. represents figures for <he year ended March 31 200 0 - = -
APL Apoilo Tubes Limited, the holding Company nas also given carporate guarantee for term iGan and atner cresit facilesguyn, Sy the
Company from banks. Sas ~Yo
Ali related party transactions were enterec at an arm’s iength pasis and in the ordinary course of DuUsiness. f ;, 3':%
| -
\ 3\ \ £y
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly knawn as APL Apollo Building Praducts Private Limited)
CIN-UZ72000L1019PLC358965
Notes to the financial st ts for the vear ended March 31, 2025 P S

Income tax expense

The reconciliation af estimatad income tax to inceme tax expense Is as below W e
; (Rupees in Crores)

particul = Year ended Year ended
yeutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- = == ——— i e e March 3%, 2042 L ——
Profit before tax as per statement of profit and toss 170.33 32.42
Income tax expenses calculated as per 13k ratas of Tncome tax act of 17 157 (Margh 31 2020 17 16%:) 29 23 556
£ Incorme ex2mpt from tax ' tems not seductible _ SR (] L — __GB5,
Tax expense as reported 28.75 - .21

Fair value measurements

Tre ‘ollowing tables preserts the zarmying Laiue ana fair :alue of eacn Zategery of inanca, assets and habihtes 3s 33 Macsh 11 2025 and March 31, 2024

{Rusees in Croret!

arTm 21 2025
Particulars
resar FvTPL  FVTOCL Amortised FVTPL

e = —

Ae ot M

Financial assets - Non Current
Tayastmenrs

Ctrer negstive 5 s

Secur ty Zepos 2285 1338

Tnomargin money A th matunty more than 12 morits at Aceplon 1358 133

~itn Sarks

Financial assets - Current

Trage Rece ares 1423 18 52

_nans ro =2molovess 2.52 c.at

~asr and £asn 2guiv3 ents S0 22357

3alarces ~ tn zarks

interest accrues 1789 e _aaas

Tatal financlat assets i 11,38 JLon_ - P 305.12

—_— A —_— —

Financial liabilities - Non Current

3orrawings 157 7+ 544,52
26.40 2596

_ease liabilitias

Financial liabiti
acrrowings
Lease llablities
T-3de payatle
Zapital Treditors
Retention maney tavable
inrer=st payabie

Total financial liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

~his section xplains the judgaments and estimates made I~ deterre ung tre fai- values ot the financial nstrume
vaiua anc |%, measured at arortised cast and for which faic vaiues are discesec 0
nputs usea 0 getermining rarr value “he Campany has classdied s financial instruments Nke e
rices Tris rcluges sted 2qQuity \~srraments that have qucted orce The fair value

nrs gnat are 13! recogrised and measured at fair
-he Ananc al statements Ta orguice an ndicat:or ahout the reliabltity Jf the
-~ree ievels arascr bed _nder the accounting standard

Level 1: _aver * herarchy nciudes financal nstrurents measured using quoted P
of al! 2gaity nstrurents which are traded n *he stock excranges 's salLed using the clesing price as 3t the raporting o2~ 9d

acuve market 5 jeterminec J5ing vaijauor recnnGuUes WhlCh TIaximIse tre _se of

Level 2: The tair salue ot franca \Astr.ments That are 1CL Iraced 37
t are abservable tne

sbservabre market data and ey A5 iittle as possible or satity-spec fic esti—ates 1f 3l signuficant rputs required to far vaiue an instrumen
nstrament 15 nciuced in leve! 2

tevel 3: !f ane 2r more of the significant ApUEs 1S nct oased 2 observadie markar 2afa, tne Insty
secunties. security deposits inciuded n ievel 3

Jment s ieciuded 0 feval 3 This is the case fcr Lnhisted eguity

Assets and liabilities whicn are measured at amortised cast far which fair values are disclosed
Al the financ:al asset and firancial 13t " uss measured at amoriised J9st. 1377vIng value 'S an IpLromIMmat 27 of their ~esoectve far /2iue

:_irlm:ial assets m_easured at fair value - fair value measurements “tevel 3) } S T——
- — = — Fair Value as 2t
Particulars TMarch 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
i —— e 2 IE—— -
Thyestmacts 0 2quily 'nstruments  see note 53

farr sawue throsgh the otrer zamprehensive rcome —unquoted 2g.ty sN2e2s 1138

~smpulsore zerveruble depent.res -amed 3t cost - unguotad - ____'3_7.0 ——
Yotal investments — =E=2ﬂn_?, -—— =

Financia! sk management objectives
“he Campar. 5 3T vities 2xpose D ~arket nisk ncluc g foraan turency T8k ard nte-ast -ate © sk Cuidity nse ard credit 1Sk
“nis nota 2aplains the s0urces of =5« wmign the 20Ty 5 sxposed To 2rd Row the enbiy Tanages he "isk
woed by rne 82arc 27 Sirectors, Lompany Treasury Le

Lmits. The ccard orovedes onnc nies for geerall fsk Tue Ay

Tma “amzapy’s sk MarIgement § -arred out Dy 2 Ty Assarent under cehices 22

darrdips evaluates and racges nnancadl fgKs 2 0S@ Sdears ation with the Company s Jperat=
25wl 3% aohcies sovenng specfic areas such as nedging af foreign Zue rransactians foregn ExiNange rsx

Market risk
Agws that M2+ ~asylt frem 2 change 'n the price of 3 fnanc 3.

marker ns« § Ttk of any oss A future aatmings, n TEANSRNE AT AU or n fut.re Zasn
igraign turfency 2:change rates, aquity once Auctuations, qu-dCy

Ascrument, Tha salua of 2 financial ¢ g1t T3y sha1ge et resut Sf changas In mterast “ates

and atrer maret smanges. Future spasfis Tarker mouemants Jan rot be Tarmally aredimed o th (245t nable accuracy

Foreign currency risk

The ~amgany 5 fURCTIoNal curreacy 1 Inaran Rupees :NRi The Corrpany undertakes rransachions Jenaminztad n the fyeeign Carrencies consequertly 2xposure ts
2xcnange ate fluctuanons arise Jowalty n 2xcnange rates affects the “ampany = the ¢3sts 3F Mpars 37 mariy  reaton fa raw matena Tre Zompany S
axpesed “o 2xchange rate -1k under its trade and debt portfoilo

sdverse movements n the 2xcrangs rate Jetwesn the Ry and 36, ~2tavant foraign LTTEr esuit's ©tme ngtease ©othe Zomoanv 5 sverall deot posions 7

fupee terms withaut the Comoany having \ncurred agoitonal debt anc favourable movarents i tne 2xchangs cates wili conversely “esult nreduction n he
Comoany § recatvable T ofaraign turrensy In arder to Wedge =xchange rate : 5K rhe Company n2s & Oolicy to nedge -zen flows up (0 32 soecific tenure Jsing forward
2xcnange za-tracts and Jptiens. At any point 0 tme, the Company hedges :ts 2stimated foreign curancy 2XDOSSE + raspect of toracast sales Jver *he ‘ollogwing &
months, [n respect of ImociTs 203 other pavacles, the Company heages i1ts pavabie as when the SxDOSUre Irises

A o
(e

Il @ N 1\
= Chartered \(P_'-.
\'o Accountans [ !
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 o

Details on derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures

The year end foreign currency expasures that have not been heaged by a derivative instrument or atherwise are given below:

;r;nc As at - As at
Ry id March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Payables:
ysp 101,500 58,807.00
Equivalent ir Rupess in crere 0.87 049
EURC 562,072
Eguivaient n Rupees «~ crorg 517
Receivables:
Uso 218.308 3,782 863 3G
EQu'vaient 3amount in Rupeas n <rores 187 31.84
Sensitivity
IFINR 15 deoracatag oy 9 5% « 5-3-2-vis “Craign currengy the mpact tnereof cn tre praf t ang 16ss (after tax: of tme comazany ate given balow
Particulars N N Impact on profit st tax
Year ended Year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
USD sensitivity
INR/USD Increases by 0.9% {Marcn 31, 2023 - 0.5%) 10.08) +3,30;
INR/USD Dec-ease 5y 0 5% [March 21, 2023 - 0.5%) 208 530
EURD sensitivity
INR/EURO Increases by 9.5% ‘March 31 2023 - 0 S%:" 5.02 {5.3G.
INR/EURO Decrease by 0.5% (March 31, 2023 - 0.5%) 10.02) 2.00

(a) Interest Rate Risk
Interest race nisk 1s the rsk that tne fa:r value or future cash “gws of 2 fina~c'al instrument will Fuctuate because of changes N marcet nterest rates. Tha
Company :s exposed Lo inter2st 318 nisk Gecause fLnds are Do tawec at oot fixed and foalng .nterest rates. Inter c3te r's< s mMmeasured Dy USIRG INe
casr ‘low sensitivily for changes ghe intsrest talz Tne angs of tne Company are orint:pali, de 2 ropeas with @ mix of fixed ana
floating rates of «nterest. The Coingany us rlerest rze sznsitive Ananc al nstrument, Lo £ an e L ouetity and fund requirements ‘or its dav
¢ day operavons like short term loans Tne sk s maraged by :1e Company by maintaining an appropriate mix oetween fixea and floatng -ate
2Crrowings.

{Rupees in crore;

— As at As at
Partlcﬂa_i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Varaole rate corrowings 445 B6 784 33
Fixea -ate >orrow'ngs 6132

507,18 794.33

Total barrowings

As at the end of the reporting pericd, the company had zhe rollowing variable rate borrowings:
Particulars I
As at March 31,2025

A_m_ount_:__‘__ 9 of total loans

Bank 3verdrais, bsr« '0ans,casn cred 445 86 87.51%
As at March 31,2024
Bank overd-afts,2ark loans <395 sredit 794.83 100 00%
Sensitivity
Profit or ass :after 1ax) s sensitive 1o Tigrer/iower Tterest 2xpanse oMM 237owings as a result of changes n nterest ~ates
Particulars = T Impact on profit after tax
Year ended Year ended
. o March 31,2025 __ March 31,2024
[nterest rates - ncrease by 50 HasIs Sorts | S0 boss - 1,87 .2.29)
185 3.29

Interest -ates - dec-ease by 50 7asis peirts ‘50 ops?

(b) Credit risk
C-ediz - sk amses wnen 3 counta- party defaults on co-tragtea stugat ons -esuitrg . f aancal 'ess to b cany
Commpany s rade -ece vapies ara generallv zategores Ata ‘clow ng tategores
1. Irsvrsnonal custemers
2. Deaiers
In case of sale To nsurut'cna customers certain zredit period s 3 owes
credit, D3Nk guarantee, post dared neques, atc

in grder 1o mutigete cred.: nsik. majorty of the saies 3ra secured oy lertar of

Ln case of sale 1 dealers cerain crec.t sericd 's 2llowed. [ oroer to Tihigate credit misK, majonty of tre sales made c Zeaiers are secured Ev wav 3f 5osT

datea cheques {PDC)
Fartner, Company nas an angeing cred't evajuabion process in respect of customers who are allowed Zrecit zerica
In general, 't s aresumed that <radit nsk nas significantly rcreased since nitia 2cognition £ tne naymerts are more na 30 3avs past due




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(c)

40

Liquidity risk
The Company nas a llquidity risk management framework for managing «ts short tarm, madium term ang '‘ong term
shGrt term and 'ong term utilizatlon regu.rement This s momitorad thfough @ roting forecast showing the expecied et casn flow, ikely

scurces of funding vis-a-vis

y of cash and casr equivalents, ang ava:asle uncrawn Sorrov wirg facihties.

Firencing Arrargements: The positicn of urdrawn Sorrowing facliues at the end of tre reporung Jeriod are as ‘clows

Particulars m ) T as at Year ended

— = ——r = _March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Floating Rate borrowngs 8§29 756 3588.00
Workirg Caoita ‘Work ~3 Capai

Nature of Facility

tie DElOW ana.yses the Lompany s a:i acn-derivative Fnancial wadilities :nto ~2isvart Matur v DAseC oh the” Coniraciual —MatLnties

‘1— amoupts disciosed in tne tabie are the ontractua .ndisccuriad Zash Tows

Contractual maturities of financial Habilities:
(Rupeas in ufﬂfe___)

iParticulars Mot later than 1 | Between 1 Later than5 | Total

! i vear | _and S vears vears l

'Non-derlvatives i [ ] |

(March 31, 2025

| Borrowlngs 149 45 | 357 74 507.19

Lease L abutles { 1.86 7 44 47 59 56.89 |

Trace payable 311.80 | 0.03 - 311.83 [

Captal Creditors 5.94 : ' 5.94
3.88 ! . . 3.88 i

Retenticn money navable
|interast pavable 5.70 ‘ 6.70
Total non-derivative liabilities ! 379.63 | 365.21 47.59 892.43
(Non-derivatives i I
March 3%, 2024

Borrowings 150.21 644.63 .
Lease Uabiities 1.86 7.44 18.52
T-5d2 payable 507.08 |
Capltal Creditors i 5.50 - |
Retentlon money payable ! 6521 . ;
linterest payaply — 1 22.38

|Total non-derivative liabilities e 693.23 §52.07 18.52 |

Capltal Management

The Cempany being in a captal :ntensive industry, its objective Is to mamntain 3 strong credit rating healthy capital ratios and estabiish a capital
structure that would maximise the retun o stakerolders through optimum mix of debt ard equity

repayment of principal and interest on ts borrowings and strategic

The Company's capital requirement 's mairly ta ‘und its capacity expansior,
cash generated fram s operations

acaulsitions. The princlpai source of funding o the Company has neep, and 1s 2xpected to cantinue to 9e,
sdpplemented by furding ram Sank Sorewings and the capital markets. The Company s not subject ta ary externaly 'mposed capital
reguirements.

The Company regularty ccnsiders other financ ng ara refinancing oppcrtunities to diversify its debt proflle, requce :nrerest ost and =iangate the
maturity of its debt portfalio, and cioseiv menitars its judicious al'ocation amongst compening capital expansion projects and strategrc acquisiticns,

to capture market opportunities 3t Minimum nsk

he Company menitors 's captal using geanng ratlo, ahich is net deot divided to totai equity Net cehbt rciudes, nrerest tearng 'gans and

SorrowIngs less casr and casn equivaients, Banx nalances other than cash and cash equlvaients.
{Rupees in crore)

i As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non current borrowings ) 357.74 644.62
Current borrawings 149 45 150.17
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (5.00) (223.57)
Less: Fixed deposits class/fied in other cur-ent financial assets 4.96 4.38
Total Debts 507.15 575.61
Total equity 1,169.46 829.49
Gearing Ratio 0.43 0.569

Guity iniudes all capital anc reserves of tne Company that are managed as capitat.
— =
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly knawn as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Financial Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements

el o - N As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
Turrent Ra"uo o 107 121
Current Rate = Currant Assets / Corrent Laoilities

% change frem previous year (11 78%) (9 18%)
Sebt-Ec_ity Ratic 043 G 69
Debt-Equity Rat ¢ = Net Debt*’’ / Shareno!der's Equity

%% crange from previous year {37.65%) (41.93%)
Re3son “cr charg:s mare thar 25% See ~nre ‘3l beiow

Dekr Service Coverage Rale 258 ¢ 1z
Deor Se~vice Coverage Ratic = Earmuings ; 2est

% change “rom previgus year 2633 244%,
Reason for cnange more tnan 25% See rnote /b beicw

Raturn or Equlty Ratic 14.17% 3.66%
Returm on Equ ty Ratc= Net Profit after tax / Average S-aranzicer s Cguly

“¢ Change ‘ram Jras dus year 2877z 133%
Reason for change mora than 25% See ngte {2} Delow

Inventery turncver ~atio 12.68 9.71
Inventory tumevear ratio= Sales / Avarage invertory

% change “rom orev ous year 31% 73%
Reason for change o2 than 25% See note /¢l delow

“rade receivables turnover ratic 146,19 106 79
T-ace recelvables turnover ratio= Sales / Average trade receivadles

% change from previcds year 40% {19.87%;
Reason for change more than 25% See rota (c! below

Trade payables turnaver ratle 10,93 5.13
Trade payabies turmover rano= Net purcnases / Average trace payaosles

% cnange from orevious year 78% 54%
Reason for charge more tnan 25% See ~cte fd) below

Net capitai turnaver ratio 127.65 21.23
Net capital turnover -atio= Sates / Working capital

% change from previous year 501% 182%
R2ason for change mere than 25% See rote {<) below

Net Profit Ratio 3.01% 0.82%
Net Profit Ratio= Profit after tax / Sales

%s change from oravicus year 267% 14%
Reason for change more than 25% See note {b} belew

Return on capita’ empioyed 13.38% 7.38%
Return on capita erpioyed = Eaming hefﬂr= interest a~d raxes'’’ © Capial

empioyed'®'

% change from previcus year 819% 233%
Reasen for change mors than 25% See note {2) delow

Return on :nvestment 135% 0.95%
Rewrn o0 investment= Income gererated frem invested

funds / average nvesteq furds in treasury invasterts .

% crange from oravigus year 12.80% 196.44%)
Reason for change more than 25% See ~ote (e} be'ow

Explanation of formulas used in calculating ratios :

. Net cept inciuces gorrawings {long term 2nc shor t2~—, ner of Zash & casr eguiva ents ang bank baiances

": Earmngs availapie for deot service includes profit after tax, finarca costs, depreciatior and other non cash expense.
| Debt service inciudes flnance costs said anc srnaipal repayment of JoMrowINgs {I0Ng term and snort termj.

(4) Zarning befcre interest and taxes inciudes Profit before tax plus depreciation.

(5} Capital empoloyed .ncludes Tangible net worth (Total assets - total liability - intangible assets}, net dest and deferrad tax aoility

Note :

(2} Due to Jecrease ir trade recelvables

{5} Due to increase !n eamings avallable during the year

{c) Due to increase in sales during the year.

{d} Due to increase i~ ourchases during the year

(e} Due tc 'ncrease n nterest an fixed deposit Juring the year.

No funds {which are Tarterlal either rdividually or in tre aggregate) nave been advanced or loarea or rvestec (either fram dorrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or <ind of funds) oy the Company tc or n any otner person(s; 2r entity(lesj, .nauaing foraign entries
CIntermediares”), with the understanding, wnether recorded 'm writing or otherwlse, that the !ntermedlary shall, directly or indirectly 'end o~
nvest in gther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever oy or an behaif of the Company {"Uitimate Beneficlaries™) or provide ary
guarantee, securlty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 3ereflciares.

No funds (whicn are materlal either individually or in the aggregate) nave beer recerved ty the Company from any persaq s

\
foreign-antities “Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded 'n writing or atherw!se, that the {gMmbany sha § cly or
Flinoing Party (’ itimate

mﬂlrﬁc-lz IBnd or invest 1 2fher persens or entitles identified 1n any manner whatsoever Dy or on denail of T F

Seref ’\ﬁr'es ) or providé€lany guaranies, security ar the like on benalf of the Ultimate Beneficiares. <\ W:
Chartorz ‘ - ;

Accouiitans




APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(Formerly known as APL Apollo Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

41 Additional regulatory information

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-cash changes- -

T Asat

Particulars ~ Opening balance  Net Cash flows
as at April 1, 2023 foreign exchange March 31, 2024
movement

Nom-current borrowings 522.83 21.7 244 .32
Carrent barrowings 100.83 49.38 150.21
Total liabilities from financing activities 723.58 71.17 ) = 794.83

) (Rupees in crore)
Particulars As at Net Cash flows  Non-cash changes- As at

March 31, 2024 foreign exchange

March 31, 2025

movement
NCr-CUrrent Dorrow.ngs 544362 ‘286 83 357 7
Current bar-nwings 150,21 2.78; 14543
Total liabilities from financing activities = 794.83 (2B7.65) T 507.18

Relationship with Struck off companies
The compary does rot nave any rz anonshio ~zh companries st
such campany for 7re years endec Marcn 31, 2025 ard Marcr 31 2022

o

Corporate Social Respansibility
Ac ser Sectior 135 of tne Comparies Act, 2013, a company mzetrg the apphcability thresnold, reeas Lo
-he immediately praceding three f nancial vears on carporate soctal -esponsibility {CSR: actvities. A CSR committee has oeen

ey
A€

ser the Act. The funds wera pnman'y aliocated to 3 orpLSs 373 wihiz
Comparnies Act, 2013

wc< off {as def ned by Companies Act, 2013; and dig nat arter Irte ransactens wan any

scend at least 2% cof \ts average 1t profit ‘or
formed oy the Company 25
zec through the yez~ ¢n tnese acoviies wrich were specfied in schedule VIL of the

Year ended

rticul
Particulars March 31, 2025

amount regL.red to be soent as per section 135 of Campanies Act, 2013 029
amount of axpenditure - “he books of 3CCOurts 3.29
1 Actual exsenditure c.03
Provision mace fo- Nability 025
Shortfal at the 21d of the year
‘oY Tatal of orevious years shortfall -
v , Reascn for shortfall See ~ote below
o1y Amount ¢f expenditure ncurrad on
;) Constructior ¢ 3cquisitton 3° any asset
_ 303

11} On purposes other 7 ) 2bove
ix  Mature of ZSR activities
«; Sertails of m2.atec paty T3Tsactiens Nene

“or the year erded Marcn 31
Company Nas suDSecLent to nalance sreet date has depasited amcunt of Rupess 3 26 crore on Aprit 29,2025 ¢

Sar the year arded March 31, 2024, Conseguent to the Compames {Corpotat Sociar Resgetsibiity
Campany nas transferrec Rupees 3.3 Zrores ¢ the so cfied Fongs M zarepiiance with coou 33877 T2ALSEMenls
sustainapil TV ritiatives

2025, Corsequent to ne Companies [Corporate Soc ar Responsibility Pchcy) Amended Ruies, 2021
o 2 separate 0ark aclount.

ssiev) Amended Rules, 2021 {'the rules ':
5 TC supCcort community devesopmer?t arc

Year ended
March 31, 2024

See ote ce'ow

Nore

{'tre rules"), 9@

ioe

(d) Cryptocurrency or Virtual currency Transactions
as explainea oy maragement. Tre Jompany Sid fot erieT ransaciLons o Cryotocusrency or Virtual urrenty ZJrng (ne vaar snded Ma~zh 31 2025 Marcr
31,2024 Nuj

(e) Maintenance of Audit Trail log

The Company 7as used ascountng scftware ‘or mantamng 15 DOO0AS Of accoum far ine hinans al year endea March 31

racarding auail Tra: (ece leg) facsity ang the same has cperated tnmaughoul e yoar for changes mitates at &
relovant transactions and carually cnablea enly for cartain tabies for cnange
pot atiizeg during the year for any deect daia changes 1o Jncerving tatles through 2ophcation fron
shanges made to fatanase lavel was operated throughoyt the velr for 2ccouniing szfrware that the Comoany Uuses
-afevant fransactions

2025 which Nas 3 fee
o appugat:an ‘evsl through T-Coges
< gone through debug mede ard management ansured M2l Ceauy LI5S
Leng and csgording of audi tral for dirtct 34t

or recarcing an2 process

2
wWat

ing at an
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APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Formerly known as APL Apollg Building Products Private Limited)
CIN-U27200DL2019PLC358966
_NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 =S

The amount due to Micro and small enterprises as defined in "The Micro, Small and Medwm Enterprises Development _act, 2006" has‘ been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis af Information available with the Company The disclosures relating to
Micro and Small Enterpnses are as below:

Particulars As at March 31,
s at March 31, 2024
2025 sy Sl
(i) The principal amount remaining unpald to supplier as at the end of the year 2,61 0.66
(it} The interest due therean remaining unpa:d to supplier as at the end of the year 020
(in) Payments made to supphers bevond the appcainted day during the vear
a) Prinapal 16.30

b} Interest paid thereon

{iv) The amourt of 7z “iir wnd payable f4: imd 0.20
(v) The amaount of | o during the - 020
(vi} The amount of intarest rasaming due = 020

Details of benami property heid
No praceeding has been 'nmitiated or 3re pend 1g against tre company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaclions
(Prohioitions) Act, 1388 {45 of 1988) and the rues made thereunder

Wilful defaulter
Tne Company has not been deciared wilful defauiter oy any bank ar financal institution or any iengar

Undisclosed income -
There 1s no income surrenaered or disciosed as income during the cLrrent Or Previous year in the tax assessments unger the [ncome “ax Act,

1961, that has not been recorded 1n he books of account

Valuation of PPAE, intangible asset
Tne Company has rot revaiued its property, plant anc eguipment (inciud'ng right-of-use assets} or niarg ale assers or beth duning the Zurtent =v
orevious year

Registration of charges or satisfaction with istrar of C.
There ars no charges ar satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Regstrar of Companies beyond tne statutory penod.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disciosed n the financial statements and the accompanying nates have been rounded off to the nearest crore as per the requirement
of schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013 unless otherwise stated.

Subsequent events
According to management's evaluation of events sLbsequent to the balance sheet date, there were no sigrificant adjustments that occurred other
than disclosed/ given effect to in these financial statement as of March 31, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
APL APOLLO BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

YiNAY GUPIA

Birecon

sTE TN as
Al
il
VIPUL JAIN AMRESH MISHRA
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

1CSI Membership No. A2097%

Place : Noida
Date : May 6, 2023



